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Additional Notes

1. Concentration mix of the bank’s exposure to individual entities, capital groups, sectoral and geographical market segments along with assessment of the related risk

Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. fully adheres to the norms of credit concentration as stipulated in the Banking Law Act.  As at 2002-end, the maximum credit concentration limits for Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. were (in line with the art. 71 of the Act):

· PLN 362 539k (according to regulations 20%) in the case of the exposure to subsidiary or dominant undertakings, 

· PLN 453 174k (according to regulations 25%) in other cases.

The policy pursued by the bank aims at minimization of the credit concentration risk, which is reflected by the application of more rigorous rules than the regulatory ones in this respect.

In 2002, the bank recorded an 11% growth in the total loan book which as at 31.12.2002 totaled PLN 12 820 m and a 31% increase in the personal credit book, which totaled PLN 2 357m at the year-end. Over the analyzed period, the relation between the volumes of personal and business loans was subject to marginal movements (between 18% and 22%).

At the same time, Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. recorded a fall in impaired loans in the loan book (from 20% in December 2001 to 18% in December 2002), whereas for the entire banking sector this ratio went up to 21% at 2002-end.  The Bank recorded an even better result as regards the personal loan book, where the share of impaired loans fell during the year from 13.4% to 10.8% (for the entire banking sector, the ratio is 16%).

In pursuing its credit policy, Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. consistently applies the rule of credit exposure to industries of a relatively low risk level and diversifies its exposure to individual industries. As at 31.12.2002, the bank’s portfolio did not include a dominant industry and the largest share in individual industry does not exceed 10%.

	PKD
	PKD name
	Exposure *
	%
	Gr1
	Gr2
	Gr3
	Gr4
	% gr.2-4

	51
	Wholesale trade and commission trade without motor vehicles/
	1 252 898
	9,6%
	897 947
	61 483
	56 454
	237 014
	28.3%

	15
	Manufacture of food products and beverages
	1 203 010
	9,2%
	1 069 302
	7 186
	49 395
	77 127
	11.1%

	65
	Financial intermediation
	762 453
	5,9%
	716 906
	34
	9 987
	35 526
	6.0%

	40
	Electricity, gas, steam and hot water supply
	731 956
	5,6%
	728 407
	1 283
	4
	2 262
	0.5%

	01
	Agriculture and hunting
	639 627
	4,9%
	536 878
	12 078
	19 848
	70 823
	16.1%

	52
	Retail trade /except for motor vehicles/
	521 597
	4,0%
	328 860
	15 422
	138 123
	39 192
	37.0%

	75
	State administration and defense
	475 218
	3,6%
	458 104
	475
	-
	16 639
	3.6%

	45
	Construction
	464 175
	3,6%
	282 303
	29 287
	94 045
	58 540
	39.2%

	70
	Real estate activities
	438 769
	3,4%
	296 014
	96 049
	41 684
	5 022
	32.5%

	64
	Post and telecommunications
	344 391
	2,6%
	343 868
	-
	-
	523
	0.2%

	
	Other
	3 841 342
	29,5%
	2 941 858
	257 244
	166 139
	476 101
	-

	A.
	Businesses


	10 675 436
	81,9%
	8 600 447
	480 541
	575 679
	1 018 769
	19.4%

	B.
	Private individuals
	2 356 761
	18,1%
	2 102 041
	50 148
	26 849
	177 723
	10.8%

	
	incl. mortgages
	1 346 572
	10,3%
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	A+B
	Bank’s portfolio
	13 032 197
	100%
	10 702 488
	530 689
	602 528
	1 196 492
	17.9%


 * gross receivables 

The table below presents the bank’s 10 largest exposures to personal clients:

	
	PKD
	Risk grade
	Balance
	Open credit line
	Guarantees
	Total exposure

	Client 1
	65
	1B
	243 347
	2 380
	-
	245 727

	Client 2
	64
	1A
	204 315
	7 400
	-
	211 715

	Client 3
	71
	1B
	195 467
	4 698
	2 037
	202 202

	Client 4
	15
	1A
	174 197
	-
	563
	174 760

	Client 5
	40
	1B
	152 867
	-
	-
	152 867

	Client 6
	51
	1B
	150 000
	-
	-
	150 000

	Client 7
	23
	1A, 1B
	145 874
	-
	-
	145 874

	Client 8
	65
	1A
	145 652
	7 065
	2 924
	155 641

	Client 9
	65
	1A, 1B
	138 792
	152
	-
	138 944

	Client 10
	65
	1B
	133 731
	-
	-
	133 731


The table below presents the bank’s 10 largest exposures to  capital groups: 

	
	PKD
	Risk grade
	Balance
	Open credit line
	Guarantees
	Total exposure

	Capital group 1
	64
	1A
	204 315
	7 400
	-
	211 715

	Capital group 2
	65
	1A, 1B
	138 791
	153
	-
	138 944

	Capital group 3
	40
	1B, 1C
	152 687
	-
	-
	152 687

	Capital group 4
	40
	1A
	106 083
	13 804
	-
	119 887

	Capital group 5
	23
	1A, 1B
	145 874
	-
	-
	145 874

	Capital group 6
	01
	1B
	115 750
	5 234
	-
	120 984

	Capital group 7
	17
	1A
	102 822
	70
	22 293
	125 186

	Capital group 8
	15
	1A
	174 197
	-
	563
	174 760

	Capital group 9
	15
	1A, 1B, 1C
	132 222
	13 844
	-
	146 066

	Capital group 10
	75
	1A
	106 387
	1 170
	-
	107 557

	
	
	
	
	
	
	


Figures standing for individual credit risk grades are as follows:

1 – regular, 1C – watch, 2 – substandard, 3 – doubtful, 4 – lost. In the case of businesses, the bank applies a more detailed split of categories: 1 – regular into two sub-categories: 1A – high quality, 1B – stable.

The mix of Bank Zachodni WBK receivables as at 31 December 2002 and 31 December 2001 across different  geographies was as follows:

	Net receivables from the non-financial and public sectors

	
	31.12.2002
	31.12.2001

	Province
	           Value
	         %
	           Value
	        %

	1.dolnośląskie
	2 728 969
	23.45 %
	2 795 789
	26.30 %

	2.kujawsko-pomorskie
	519 226
	4.46 %
	403 954
	3.80 %

	3.lubelskie
	160 346
	1.38 %
	116 934
	1.10 %

	4.lubuskie
	671 424
	5.77 %
	701 605
	6.60 %

	5.łódzkie
	143 179
	1.23 %
	159 456
	1.50 %

	6.małopolskie
	240 566
	2.07 %
	212 608
	2.00 %

	7.mazowieckie
	1 532 915
	13.18 %
	1 243 754
	11.70 %

	8.opolskie
	413 933
	3.56 %
	425 215
	4.00 %

	9.podkarpackie
	23 718
	0.20 %
	21 261
	0.20 %

	10.podlaskie
	71 108
	0.61 %
	74 413
	0.70 %

	11.pomorskie
	260 651
	2.24 %
	255 129
	2.40 %

	12.śląskie
	544 701
	4.68 %
	552 780
	5.20 %

	13.świętokrzyskie
	201 650
	1.73 %
	95 673
	0.90 %

	14.warmińsko-mazurskie
	87 627
	0.75 %
	74 413
	0.70 %

	15. wielkopolskie
	3 793 366
	32.60 %
	3 295 417
	31.00 %

	16.zachodnipomorskie
	243 355
	2.09 %
	201 977
	1.90 %

	Total
	11 636 734
	100 %
	10 630 378
	100 %


2. Information on the deposit sources - sectoral and geographical market segments

The mix of Bank Zachodni WBK deposits as at 31 December 2002 and 31 December 2001 by sectors was as follows:

31.12.2002

	Deposits
	Businesses and  public sector units
	Private individuals
	Total

	PLN
	4 819 894
	9 718 173
	14 538 067

	· Current
	2 508 144
	1 600 217
	4 108 361

	· Term 
	2 303 969
	7 968 799
	10 272 768

	· Interest
	7 781
	149 157
	156 938

	Fx
	532 859
	2 195 180
	2 728 039

	· Current
	289 108
	606 298
	895 406

	· Term
	243 519
	1 576 855
	1 820 374

	· Interest 
	232
	12 027
	12 259

	Total
	5 352 753
	11 913 353
	17 266 106


31.12.2001r.

	Deposits
	Businesses and  public sector units
	Private individuals
	Total

	PLN
	4 948 511
	10 964 472
	15 912 983

	· Current
	2 327 894
	1 402 351
	3 730 245

	· Term
	2 604 856
	9 360 982
	11 965 838

	· Interest
	15 761
	201 139
	216 900

	Fx
	613 263
	2 187 961
	2 801 224

	· Current
	282 706
	653 063
	935 769

	· Term
	330 404
	1 518 263
	1 848 667

	· Interest
	153
	16 635
	16 788

	Total
	5 561 774
	13 152 433
	18 714 207


The breakdown of Bank Zachodni WBK liabilities as at 31 December 2002 and 31 December 2001 across geographies was as follows:

	Amounts due to the non-financial and public sectors



	
	31.12.2002
	31.12.2001r.

	Province
	Value
	%
	Value
	%

	1.dolnośląskie
	5 459 494
	31,62 %
	5 745 262
	30,70 %

	2.kujawsko-pomorskie
	595 875
	3,45 %
	580 140
	3,10 %

	3.lubelskie
	8 798
	0,05 %
	37 428
	0,20 %

	4.lubuskie
	1 095 509
	6,34 %
	842 139
	4,50 %

	5.łódzkie
	279 223
	1,62 %
	617 569
	3,30 %

	6.małopolskie
	160 146
	0,93 %
	168 428
	0,90 %

	7.mazowieckie
	1 374 213
	7,96 %
	1 553 279
	8,30 %

	8.opolskie
	861 036
	4,99 %
	954 425
	5,10 %

	9.podkarpackie
	24 743
	0,14 %
	18 714
	0,10 %

	10.podlaskie
	55 241
	0,32 %
	56 143
	0,30 %

	11.pomorskie
	774 366
	4,48 %
	823 425
	4,40 %

	12.śląskie
	828 506
	4,80 %
	973 139
	5,20 %

	13.świętokrzyskie
	108 882
	0,63 %
	130 999
	0,70 %

	14.warmińsko-mazurskie
	74 950
	0,43 %
	56 143
	0,30 %

	15. wielkopolskie
	5 289 646
	30,64 %
	5 932 404
	31,70 %

	16.zachodnipomorskie
	275 478
	1,60 %
	224 570
	1,20 %

	Total
	17 266 106
	100 %
	18 714 207
	100 %


3. Information on changes in subsidies to foreign branches, taking account of the period opening balance, increases and decreases with a break down into individual entities and balance at the period-end. 

Entities of Bank Zachodni WBK Group do not have any foreign branches.

4. Information about financial instruments while taking account of the specific nature of the issuer

Bank Zachodni WBK Group allocates the following financial instruments according to their character and purpose to the following categories:

· Financial instruments held for trading,

· Financial instruments held to maturity,

· Financial instruments available for sale,

· Sanctioned loans and advances and other own receivables.

4.1. Financial instruments taking account of the opening balance, increases, decreases and balance at the period-end

Information on financial asset classification, such as: debt securities, shares and interests, presenting changes in their balance in the period, with the breakdown into:

· securities held for trading,

· securities available for sale,

· securities held to maturity

are presented in notes to financial statements  /Notes from 6 to 11/.

Amounts due from reverse repo transactions 

	
	OB /01.01.2002/
	increase
	decrease
	CB /31.12.2002/

	Instrument 1
	 16 157
	2 052
	(18 209)
	-

	Instrument 2
	 4 210
	540
	-
	4 750

	Instrument 3
	-
	2 876
	-
	2 876

	Instrument 4
	23 357
	2 575
	-
	25 932

	Instrument 5
	-
	5 168
	(5 168)
	-

	Instrument 6
	-
	1 285
	-
	1 285

	Instrument 7
	-
	2 157
	-
	2 157

	Instrument 8*
	608
	26 846
	(26 460)
	994

	total
	 44 332
	43 499
	(49 837)
	37 994


*subsidiaries

Reverse repo transactions (debt securities) – subsidiary undertakings

	Reverse repo agreement*
	Date of concluding the agreement
	Date of reselling
	Purchase value
	Reselling value
	Effective interest rate

	T-bills 
	23.12.2002
	13.01.2003
	993
	997
	6.80


Loans and advances sanctioned

	
	Loan book*
	Earning loans*
	NPLs*

	The bank’s loan book
	13 032 196
	10 702 488
	2 329 708

	Business loans
	10 675 436
	8 600 449
	2 074 987

	Personal loans
	2 356 761
	2 102 040
	254 721

	    1. Overdrafts
	376 285
	323 242
	53 043

	    2. Mortgages
	1 346 572
	1 271 788
	74 784

	    3. Credit cards
	136 505
	127 868
	8 637

	    4. Cash loans
	497 399
	379 142
	118 257


* gross credit portfolio 

4.2. Financial assets and liabilities

4.2.1. 

a) Volume and value of financial instruments, including a description of significant terms and conditions that may have impact on the size, spread over time and certainty of future cash flows

Derivative instruments

	31.12.2002
	
	
	
	 PLNk

	
	Instrument
	PLN  Interest Rate SWAP
	FX Swaps
	Options for Euroindex in PLN bought
	Bi-currency interest rate SWAP

	
	Number of transactions
	90
	710
	12
	1

	
	Adopted accounting principles
	( 1 )
	( 1 )
	( 2 )
	( 3 )

	
	Fair value
	(28 784,70) 
	(7 066,15) 
	
	

	
	Purpose
	Trading
	Trading
	Trading
	Trading

	
	Nominal value
	2 606 524,73 
	20 445 017,21 
	579 041,64 
	396 620,00 

	
	Future income / payments
	Variable
	Variable
	Variable
	Variable

	
	Maturity
	from 09-01-03

to 27-11-06
	from 02-01-03

to 17-05-04
	from 26-09-03

to 13-03-07
	to 17-05-04

	
	Possibility of early settlement
	None
	None
	None
	None

	
	Price/Range of Prices
	from 6.6% to 17.8%
	from 0.01 to 14.37
	(54 467.96) 
	6.85% ; 3.294%

	
	Possibility to convert into other asset/liability
	None
	None
	None
	None

	
	Set rates/ interest Payments dates
	Variable
	Variable
	Variable
	Variable

	
	Additional collaterals
	None
	None
	None
	None

	
	Other terms & conditions
	None
	None
	None
	None

	
	Type of risk
	Interest rate
	Interest rate /

liquidity
	Interest rate
	Interest rate /

liquidity


( 1 ) Notional amount is posted to off balance sheet accounts.  The interest is accrued under a straight-line method against the balance sheet and P&L account over the SWAP life; adjustment to fair value as at the end of the accounting period.

( 2 ) Notional amount is posted to off balance sheet accounts. Premium settled under a straight-line method to the option maturity.

( 3 ) Notional amount is posted to off balance sheet accounts for Fx Swap and IRS transactions. The interest is accrued under a straight-line method against the balance sheet and P&L account over the SWAP life; adjustment to fair value as at the end of the accounting period.

	31.12.2001 
	
	
	
	
	PLNk

	
	Instrument
	PLN  Interest Rate SWAP 
	FX Swaps
	Option for iRS in USD sold
	Option for iRS in USD bought
	Options for Euroindex in PLN bought

	
	Adopted accounting principles
	(1)
	(3)
	(2)
	(2)
	(2)

	
	Purpose
	hedging
	trading
	trading
	trading
	hedging

	
	Nominal value
	2 181 742,33
	22 512 521,34
	32 488,35
	32 488,35
	513 564,73

	
	Future income / payments
	Variable
	Variable
	Variable
	Variable
	Variable

	
	Maturity
	From 21-01-02

to 27-11-06
	From 02-01-02

to 03-01-03
	12-08-2002
	12-08-2002
	From 03-09-03

to 22-11-06

	
	Possibility of early settlement
	None
	None
	None
	None
	None

	
	Price/

Range of Prices
	From 8,5 %

to 17,8 %
	From 0,0086%

to 6,5670
	37,9
	-12,41
	-47 516,44

	
	Possibility to convert into other asset/liability
	None
	None
	None
	None
	None

	
	Set rates/ interest, Payments dates
	Variable
	Variable
	Variable
	Variable
	Variable

	
	Additional collaterals
	None
	None
	None
	None
	None

	
	Other terms & conditions
	None
	None
	None
	None
	None

	
	Type of risk
	Interest rate
	Interest rate /

liquidity
	Interest rate
	Interest rate
	Interest rate


( 1 ) Notional amount is posted to off balance sheet accounts.  The interest is accrued under a straight-line method against the balance sheet and income statement over the SWAP life.

( 2 ) Notional amount is posted to off balance sheet accounts. Premium settled under a straight-line method against the option maturity.

( 3 ) Notional amount is posted to off balance sheet accounts.  The interest is accrued under a straight-line method against the balance sheet and income statement over the SWAP life. Adjustment to the market value at the period-end.

Receivables arising from the purchased securities with the repurchase promise – 2002 – terms and conditions  /amount and value 4.2.1./

	Subject of transaction
	Scope and type of the instrument
	Basis of payment calculation
	Transaction settlement
	Income, price setting
	Security for transaction
	Risk type

	Instrument 1
	Mandated purchase transaction of the Company’s ordinary shares listed on WSE
	Value of shares calculated acc.  to purchase price (excluding brokerage fees)
	Mandator repurchased all shares in October 2002 
	Repurchase price represented the value of shares at purchase price increased by a fee; the fee was calculated based on average 1M WIBOR for the overall transaction life increased by the margin 


	The core security was  blank B/E issued by Mandator
	Risk of mandator’s insolvency; in case this happens, there can also emerge the risk of change in the market price of the Company’s shares

	Instrument 2
	Mandated purchase transaction of the Company’s ordinary shares listed on WSE
	Value of shares calculated acc. to purchase price (excluding brokerage fees)
	Mandator is obliged to repurchase all shares; mandator is entitled to repurchase shares at any earlier date; the Bank has such a right in closely defined circumstances (e.g. deterioration of the mandator’s financial) standing
	Repurchase price will represent the value of shares at purchase price  increased by a fee; the fee is calculated on the basis of the average 1M WIBOR for the life of the transaction increased by the margin 


	The core security is blank bill of exchange drawn by the Mandator


	Risk of mandator’s insolvency; in case this happens, there can also emerge the risk of change in the market price of the Company’s shares

	Instrument 3
	Mandated purchase transaction of the Company’s ordinary shares listed on WSE
	Value of shares calculated acc. to purchase price (excluding brokerage fees)
	Mandator is obliged to repurchase all shares; mandator is entitled to repurchase shares at any earlier date; the Bank has such a right in closely defined circumstances (e.g. deterioration of the mandator’s financial standing.)

	Repurchase price will represent the value of shares at purchase price  increased by a fee; the fee is calculated according to the average rate of 1M WIBOR for the overall transaction life increased by the margin 
	The core security are the shares of the Company held by the Mandator


	Risk of mandator’s insolvency; in case this happens, there can also emerge the risk of change in the market price of the Company’s shares

	Instrument 4
	Mandated purchase transaction of the Company’s ordinary shares listed on WSE
	Value of shares calculated acc. to purchase price (excluding brokerage fees)
	Mandator is obliged to repurchase all shares; mandator is entitled to repurchase shares at any earlier date; the Bank has such a right in closely defined circumstances (e.g. deterioration of the mandator’s financial standing.)

	Repurchase price will represent the value of shares at purchase price  increased by a fee; the fee is made up of a fee and the reimbursement of the financial cost according to the average rate of 1M WIBOR for the overall transaction life


	The core security is cash in a dedicated banking account
	Risk of mandator’s insolvency; in case this happens, there can also emerge the risk of change in the market price of the Company’s shares 

	Instrument 5
	Mandated purchase transaction of the Company’s ordinary shares listed on WSE
	Value of shares calculated acc. to purchase price (excluding brokerage fees)
	Mandator repurchased all the shares in December 2002 
	Repurchase price represented the value of shares at purchase price increased by a fee; the fee was made up of a fee and the reimbursement of the financial cost according to the average 1M WIBOR for the life of the transaction 


	The core security was cash in dedicated banking accounts and cash accounts as well as Companies’ shares listed on WSE


	Risk of mandator’s insolvency; in case this happens, there can also emerge the risk of change in the market price of the Company’s shares

	Instrument 6
	Mandated purchase transaction of the Company’s ordinary shares listed on WSE
	Value of shares calculated acc. to purchase price (excluding brokerage fees)


	Mandator is obliged to repurchase all shares; mandator is entitled to repurchase shares at any earlier date; the Bank has such a right in closely defined circumstances (e.g. deterioration of the mandator’s financial standing)


	Repurchase price will represent the value of shares at purchase price  increased by a fee; the mandator’s fee will be made up of a fee and the reimbursement of the financial cost according to the average 1M WIBOR for the life of the transaction 


	The core security is cash in a dedicated banking account


	Risk of mandator’s insolvency; in case this happens, there can also emerge the risk of change in the market price of the Company’s shares

	Instrument 7
	Mandated purchase transaction of the Company’s ordinary shares listed on WSE
	Value of shares calculated acc. to purchase price (excluding brokerage fees)
	Mandator is obliged to repurchase all shares; mandator is entitled to repurchase shares at any earlier date; the Bank has such a right in closely defined circumstances (e.g. deterioration of the mandator’s financial standing.)


	Repurchase price will represent the value of shares at purchase price  increased by a fee; the fee is made up of a fee and the reimbursement of the financial cost according to the average 1M WIBOR  for the life of the transaction


	The core security is cash in a dedicated banking account
	Risk of mandator’s insolvency; in case this happens, there can also emerge the risk of change in the market price of the Company’s shares

	Instrument 8*
	Purchase of T-bills
	Value of T-bills stated at the purchase price (excl. costs)
	The commissioning party repurchased T-bills on 13.01.2003
	-
	If the commissioning party has not repurchased the bills then the company holds them to redemption date (05.02.2003)
	Insolvency risk


* subsidiaries 

b) Methods and significant assumptions adopted for setting the fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Valuation of assets and financial liabilities is described in detail in point12 of the Introduction.

Debt securities and derivatives /except for Options for the Stock Exchange Index / are stated according to commonly adopted algorithms based on daily closing rates of renowned markets / brokerage houses which are published by an independent source /e.g. Reuters/. The value of mark-to-market derivatives denominated in a foreign currency is measured by means of fixing NBP exchange rates as at the B/S date.

Options for the Stock Exchange Index are stated based on the amortized premium and are not subject to mark-to-market valuation. Since these options fully secure liabilities arising from the guaranteed investment deposits which are also stated at the market value, the difference between the net valuation of assets and liabilities which would arise as a result of applying market valuation can be considered insignificant.

Participation units are stated based on recent buy offers on the interbank market. 

c) Principles of introducing financial instruments purchased on the regulated market to accounting books

As regards setting the moment of registering the transactions of financial instrument purchase on the regulated market, it is assumed that the date of relevant postings shall be the moment of concluding the transaction on the stock exchange. 

The applied standard for the valuation of debt securities is the value date.

d) Information on interest rate risk charge, including contractual dates of interest rate changes or payment terms (for all classes of financial assets and financial liabilities, both balance sheet and off balance sheet ones)

financial assets 

Instruments with the original maturity period longer than 1 year included in the Bank’s portfolio are securities with a variable interest rate, i.e. fixed in each interest period, but variable in individual interest periods. In the case of municipal bonds, the interest is changed on an annual basis. In case of commercial bonds, the interest changes on a semi-annual basis. 

Instruments with the original maturity period up to 1 year are securities with a fixed interest rate.

financial liabilities

Investment bonds are the bank’s financial liability with a fixed interest rate and one defined date of redemption without a possibility for it to be redeemed earlier either by the customer or the bank. Investment bonds issued in 2002 have a 12-month maturity period.

Interest rate risk is also run in the case of Autostrada Wielkopolska S.A. bonds held by the Bank.

e) information on credit risk charge, including the value which best reflects maximum credit risk charge as at the B/S date (excluding the value of securities on the property) in the event if the counterparty fails to fulfill the terms and conditions of the agreement on the financial instruments (for all classes of financial assets and liabilities, both on balance sheet and off balance sheet ones)

The bank conducts significant trading activity and it calculates the capital adequacy ratio as  a total of assets and  granted liabilities multiplied by 8% (based on the banking book portfolio only). Total assets and granted off-balance sheet liabilities referring to the bank’s portfolio are allocated to relevant risk weights in accordance with the Appendix 3 to  the Bank Supervisory Resolution and is presented below:

Structure of assets accord. to risk weights

	
	Balance sheet amount
	Weighed value

	Assets with 0% risk weight
	4 532 255
	-

	1. Cash
	397 563
	-

	2. Funds in the obligatory reserve account with the Central Bank
	-
	-

	3. Receivables from Class I entities
	693 074
	-

	4. Receivables from Class II and III entities
	44 430
	-

	
	Balance sheet amount
	Weighed value

	5. Debt securities whose issuer is Class I entity
	3 077 284
	-

	6. Debt securities whose issuer is Class II and Class III entity
	-
	-

	7. Assets reducing own funds


	319 904
	-

	Assets with 20% risk weight
	2 776 785
	555 357

	1. Receivables due from Class II entities not covered with 0% risk weight
	2 775 265
	555 053

	2. Receivables due from Class III entities – in the secured part
	1 520
	304

	3. Debt securities whose issuer is Class II entity
	-
	-

	4. Debt securities whose issuer is Class III entity – in the part guaranteed by Class II entity
	-
	-

	Assets with 50% risk weight 
	1 240 040
	620 020

	1. Receivables due from Class III entities – in the part secured with mortgage on real estate (inhabited or leased out) 
	672 237
	336 119

	2. Other B/S settlement accounts
	567 803
	283 901

	Assets with 100% risk weight
	13 260 522
	13 260 522

	1. Assets not covered with smaller risk weights
	12 087 517
	12 087 517

	2. Securities, interests and other elements of the other entities’ own funds not covered with smaller risk weights
	88 013
	88 013

	3. Fixed assets
	902 694
	902 694

	4. Intangible and legal assets which do not reduce the Bank’s own funds
	181 755
	181 755

	5. Other assets which do not reduce the Bank’s own funds
	543
	543


Off balance sheet liabilities – 0% counterparty risk weight

	
	Original exposure method
	M-T-M method 
	Equivalent

	1. 0% product risk weight 
	140
	-
	-

	a) Credit commitments in the pipeline with the original maturity up to 1 year with an unconditional termination option
	140
	-
	-

	2. 20% product risk weight
	-
	-
	-

	3. 50% product risk weight
	923
	-
	462

	a) Open and confirmed letters of credit
	908
	-
	454

	b) Quality guarantee given and others
	15
	-
	8


Off balance sheet liabilities – 20% counterparty risk weight 

	
	Original exposure method
	M-T-M method
	Credit  equivalent

	1. 0% product risk weight
	16 740
	-
	-

	a) Credit commitments in the pipeline  with the original maturity up to 1 year or with an unconditional termination option
	16 740
	-
	-

	2. 50% product risk weight
	81 638
	-
	40 820

	a) quality guarantees given and others
	52 211
	-
	26 106

	b) credit commitments in the pipeline with the original maturity longer than 1 year
	29 427
	-
	14 714

	3. 100% product risk weight
	192 021
	-
	192 021

	a) granted guarantees -  substitutes for a loan
	34 074
	-
	34 074

	b) granted B/E guarantees


	56 825
	-
	56 825

	
	Original exposure method
	M-T-M method
	Credit  equivalent

	c) term deposits with a future starting date of the deposit period
	95 989
	-
	95 989

	d) other granted off balance sheet liabilities
	5 133
	-
	5 133


Off balance sheet liabilities –100% counterparty risk weight

	
	Amount
	Credit  equivalent

	1. 0% product risk weight
	1 499 337
	-

	a) credit commitments in the pipeline with the original maturity up to 1 year  or an unconditional termination option
	1 499 337
	-

	2. 50% product risk weight
	1 864 699
	932 350

	a) open and confirmed letters of credit
	101 790
	50 895

	b) quality guarantees given and others
	441 263
	220 632

	c) credit commitments in the pipeline with the original maturity longer than 1 year
	1 321 646
	660 823

	3. 100% product risk weight
	95 016
	95 016

	a) granted guarantees – substitute for a loan
	94 026
	94 026

	b) other granted off balance sheet liabilities
	990
	990


4.2.2. In case of financial assets available for sale and held for trading, stated at the amortized cost, if there is no possibility to establish a reliable fair value of these assets, the balance sheet value should be indicated together with reasons why it is impossible to state credibly their fair value and to provide their estimated, approximate fair value. 

Options for the Stock Exchange Index are stated based on the amortized premium. These options are not subject to mark-to-market valuation. As these options fully back the liabilities arising from the guaranteed investment deposits whose valuation is not marked-to-market either, the difference in the net price of these assets and liabilities which would arise on applying the market price can be considered insignificant. 

4.2.3. In case of financial assets and liabilities which are not stated at fair value:

a) data on their fair value; if  for warranted reasons the fair value of such assets or liabilities has not been stated then this fact should be disclosed and the basic profile be given for financial instruments which otherwise would be stated at the price set based on the active regulated market where public trading in financial instruments is conducted, and the information on such a price is commonly available. 

It should be stressed that if as at a reporting date it was not possible to determine a reliable market value of a given asset because of lack of quotations on the active, regulated market or lack of adequate methods for setting a fair value, or if input data to a given model was not available or sufficiently reliable, a given asset was stated at the purchase price while taking into account potential write-down due to the permanent loss in value. In most cases, they are low equity investments with a minimum shareholding or number of votes at AGM of a given company. 
b) in case the fair value of financial assets and liabilities is lower than their balance sheet value, the balance sheet value and the fair value of the asset should be given together with the reasons for abandoning the revaluation charges and rationale behind the belief that the indicated value can be recovered in the full amount 

There is no such case in Bank Zachodni WBK Group.

4.2.4. In the case the issuer was a party to an agreement pursuant to which financial assets are converted into securities or to a repurchase agreement the following should be presented for each transaction separately:

a) character and  size of the concluded transactions including the description of accepted or granted guarantees and security covers, data adopted for calculating the fair value  of interest income related to  both contracts concluded in a given period as well as those concluded in previous periods, both  completed and pending for a given period. 

b) information on financial assets  excluded form accounting books. 

On 30 October 2002, Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. concluded a conditional agreement with CENTROMOR S.A. on the sales of shares in Kupcy Gdyńscy S.A., as a result of which it acquired 5 000 shares (55% of shares and votes). On 30 October 2002, the bank paid PLN 240k for this shareholding and additionally undertook to pay PLN 2 160k by 31 December 2003.

Moreover, in the period from 23.10.2002 to 30.10.2002, Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. entered into agreement on the sale of shares in Kupcy Gdyńscy S.A. with eighteen private individuals as result of which it acquired 3 745 shares (42% shares and votes) for the total of PLN 18.00. The bank has the right to exit from this agreement by 30 June 2003.  In such an event, the seller is obliged to repurchase the shares taken up by the bank.

4.2.5. Data on the effects of stating the value of assets available for sale up to the fair value level 

Information is included in the movements in the equity (see revaluation reserve) in the tabular part of the financial statements. 

Moreover, in the case of subsidiaries (as described in p. 12 of the Introduction to the consolidated financial statements) the income arising from valuation of T-bills available for sale is taken to the profit and loss account. In subsidiaries, the difference on valuation is reflected in profit/loss on financial operations (PLN 1 115k), which was described in detail in point 12 of the Introduction to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 01.01.2002, effects of revaluation totaling PLN 498k were taken to profit/loss from previous years.

4.2.6. Information on income and costs on financial assets available for sale which were removed from the Balance Sheet (sold, liquidated)

Trading in shares and interests from the bank’s portfolio available for sale effected in 2002  are presented in the table below:

	Income at fair value
	71 847

	Cost
	60 347


Transactions in debt securities effected in 2002 are presented in the table below:

Bank:

	Income at fair value
	834 286

	Cost
	811 383

	Discount 
	22 354

	Profit 
	549


Subsidiaries:

	Treasury bills
	146

	Participation units  
	452

	Treasury bonds
	2

	Total
	600


4.2.7. Information on income and costs arising on the sale of financial assets whose fair value could not have been credibly stated earlier and indication of the balance sheet value of assets set as at the sale date. 

There is no such situation in Bank Zachodni WBK Group.

4.2.8. In the case of reclassifying financial assets stated at fair value to assets stated at adjusted purchase price, reasons for changing the valuation principles need to be provided. 

In line with the GINB’s letter (General Inspectorate of Banking Supervision) of 12 November 2002 containing an explanation to § 26 sec. 1 pt. 5 of the Finance Minister’s Ordinance, dated 10 December 2001 re. specific  accounting principles for banks, the shares and interests recognized as fixed assets are stated  at their purchase price, taking account of the write-downs for permanent loss in value. The above mentioned category includes shares and interests of five companies in the bank’s portfolio. 

4.2.9. In case of revaluation charges due to a permanent loss in value of financial assets or if the reason ceased for which such charges were made, the value of the assets was increased, it is necessary to provide amounts decreasing or increasing the value of financial assets.   

	No.
	Specification
	Value acc. to purchase price 
	Fair value as at 01.01.2002
	Increase in the revaluation charge
	Decrease in the revaluation charge
	Fair value as at 31.12.02

	
	SHARES
	
	
	
	
	

	1.
	Biuro Informacji Kredytowej S.A.
	800
	620
	-
	180
	800

	2.
	Scanclimber Sp. z o.o.
	1 690
	1 090
	523
	-
	567

	
	DEBT SECURITIES
	
	
	
	
	

	1.
	Mostostal Gdańsk S.A.
	25 000
	26 467
	23 589
	2 162
	5 040

	 
	TOTAL
	27 490
	28 177
	24 112
	2 342
	6 407


4.2.10. Interest income on debt securities, advances granted or receivables originated by the bank calculated by means of interest rates stemming from the concluded contracts, with a break-down into the categories of assets that the interest refers to; it is necessary to separately disclose the interest accrued and cashed in a given period as well as interest accrued but not cashed.

Unrealized interest by maturity

	
	State Treasury bonds
	NBP bonds
	Municipal bonds
	Commercial bonds

	Up to 3 months
	28 607
	46 810
	839
	-

	From 3 to 12 months
	65 527
	2 531
	1 329
	16

	Up to 3 months /restructured/
	1 544
	-
	-
	-

	Total
	95 678
	49 341
	2 168
	16


Subsidiaries:
	Financial assets
	Realized interest
	Interest accrued but not realized according to payment dates  as from the day of producing the financial statements

	
	
	Up to 3M
	from 3M

to 12M
	Over 12M

	Advances granted and own receivables
	60
	1
	-
	-

	Securities held to maturity
	403
	8
	187
	-


4.2.11. As regards the revaluation charges in respect of advances granted or receivables originated by the bank due to the permanent loss in their value, it is necessary to disclose interest accrued but not cashed on those receivables.

	Receivables
	PLN 21 131k

	Debt securities 
	PLN 1 465k


4.2.12. Interest expense on financial liabilities calculated by means of interest rates stemming from the concluded contracts, with a break-down into interest expense related to liabilities held for trading, other short-term  and long-term financial liabilities; costs of interest accrued and cashed in a given period should be disclosed separately from the expense of interest accrued but not cashed.

	Interest accrued on amounts due 
	

	Amounts due from the financial sector 
	27 471

	              - current
	70

	              - term
	27 401

	                     - bank
	13 345

	                     - subsidiaries*
	14 056

	Amounts due from the non-financial sector
	168 795

	              - current
	130

	              - term
	168 665

	Amounts due from the public  sector
	402

	              - current
	31

	              - term
	371


*of which unrealized – PLN 4 100k with a tenor of up to 3 months.

4.2.13. Provide the information on the notional amount of base instruments, which are subject of transactions in derivative instruments 

Such information is included in Note no. 6 and in Additional Note no. 4.2.1.

4.2.14. Objectives and principles of risk management

Credit risk in Bank Zachodni WBK Group.

Credit risk is associated with the Group’s exposure to losses resulting from default on the part of its counterparts or customers. Credit risk arises at the inception of an exposure and is present until the exposure is cleared.

Credit risk arises in the following two areas of activities:

· in connection with the Bank’s lending activities,

· in connection with transactions concluded by the Treasury Division.

Control of credit risk related to lending activities

Credit risk is controlled and managed by the Bank based on established credit processes which include credit procedures, policies and best practices and a system of lending discretions based on the skills and experience of the Bank employees. The applied credit grading and monitoring systems allow for early identification and management of any quality deterioration in the loan portfolio.  In addition, the process is supported by an independent system of credit controls and reviews, which are carried out separately for large exposures (corporate customers) and other exposures.

Lending discretions

The resolution on lending discretions specifies rules for making credit decisions by Credit Committees and the employees of the Corporate and Commercial Banking (Credit Division) depending on their experience, skills and positions as well as a borrower’s risk grade.

For all exposures, which exceed the credit authorities/ IDLs of the Directors of the Corporate and Commercial Banking Departments and the Management Board member in charge of the Corporate and Commercial Banking Division, there is a procedure, which requires the credit decision to be made by a Credit Committee.

The 1st Stage Credit Committee approves loan applications where the total exposure of the Bank to a given borrower and its related companies exceeds PLN 15m, and the 2nd Stage Credit Committee approves applications where the total exposure exceeds PLN 30m.

Credit reviews

Loan portfolio reviews are carried out regularly at Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. Reviews are conducted in the Bank’s branches and in: Corporate and Commercial Banking Departments, High Risk Loans Department, BZ WBK Finanse & Leasing, Credit Center and Capital Markets Department.

As a result of the reviews, reports are prepared covering all areas of lending, monitoring, grading, provisions and recommended changes. The reviews allow for: an independent assessment of loan quality, permit the identification of loans with a potential high risk, ensure that the best loan management standards are adhered to, ensure the verification of compliance with credit policies and procedures, ensure that effective loan recovery strategies are implemented and include an assessment of the adequacy of the provisions raised.

Credit Forum
To ensure that the process of consulting sectoral policies is efficient, a credit forum is convened. The Credit Forum constitutes a platform for decision taking and communication, which leverages the best practices of the Poland Division and AIB Group in respect of the management of assets, charged with credit risk. The Forum communicates the best sectoral practices, sectoral analyses, grading systems, risk valuations and lending policies to the branch network and the Business Center Support Divisions.

The Credit Task Force performs such tasks as: analysis of the volume trends and loan portfolio quality, analysis of provisioning levels, analysis of NPLs, recommendations of activities which would facilitate the NPLs recovery process.

The Credit Delivery Task Force analyses and recommends changes to lending procedures and processes with a view to creating an optimum credit delivery process.

The main areas of credit risk management are supervision and management of risk assessment systems, supervision in the context of the National Bank of Poland, Chief Inspectorate of the Banking Supervision, Basle Committee, participation in the decision-taking process in large exposures, assessment of credit processes, creating lending policy and best practices, risk measurement, as well as development of measurement methods and training.

Credit risk associated with interbank transactions

Credit limits for interbank transactions are set by the Interbank Limits Committee which reviews analyses and proposes limits to be approved by the Bank’s Management Board in line with the Interbank Credit Limits Policy.

The Policy specifies maximum limits for foreign banks based on ratings issued by Moody’s. Limits for Polish banks are determined on a case-by-case basis. Decisions are reviewed at least once a year. 

Exposures are monitored daily, taking into account additional factors to estimate the effect of derivative transactions. There are plans for implementing a more dynamic methodology that will enable a more precise measurement of exposures and will also take into account netting agreements, which will permit interbank limits to be used more effectively.

Credit risk associated with corporate client transactions

The corporate activities of the Treasury are limited to fx transactions, including fx swaps, and “Sell Buy back” transactions. Credit lines for Treasury are based on Credit Risk Equivalents in accordance with the policies of the Credit Division. Credit risk exposures are monitored on a daily basis and relevant information is sent to the Credit Division.
Market risk

The bank is exposed to the market risk arising from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements. The group applies a “value at risk” (VAR) methodology to estimate the market risk of positions held and the maximum losses expected, based upon a number of assumptions for various changes in market conditions. The Management Board sets limits on the value at risk that may be accepted, which is monitored on a daily basis. The daily market value at risk (VAR) measure is an estimate, with a confidence level set at 99%, of the potential loss which might arise if the current positions were to be held unchanged for one business day. The value is calculated separately for interest rate risk and currency risk transactions.

This measurement is structured so that daily losses exceeding the VAR figure should occur, on average, not more than once every 100 days. Actual outcomes are monitored regularly to test the validity of the assumptions and parameters/factors used in the VAR calculation. Since VAR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market risk control regime, VAR limits are established by the Management Board for all trading and portfolio transactions; actual exposures against limits and VAR for the Bank are reviewed daily by management.

Currency risk

The bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows. The Management Board sets limits on the level of this exposure for overnight and intra-day positions, which are monitored daily.

Interest rate risk

The bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on its financial position and cash flows. Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes, but they also may shrink or create losses in the event of unexpected movements.

Liquidity risk

The bank is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources from overnight deposits, current accounts, maturing deposits, loan draw downs, guarantees and derivatives settled on a cash basis. The Bank does not maintain cash resources to meet all of these needs as experience shows that a minimum level of reinvestment of maturing funds can be predicted with a high level of certainty. The Management Board sets limits on the minimum proportion of maturing funds available to meet such calls and on the minimum level of interbank and other borrowing facilities that should be in place to cover unexpected level of withdrawals.

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and liabilities is fundamental to the management of the bank. It is unusual for banks ever to be completely matched since business transacted is often diversified and of unpredicted maturity dates. An unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but also increases the risk of losses. The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature, are important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Bank and its exposure to changes in interest rates and exchange rates. Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the commitment because the Group does not generally expect the third party to draw funds under the agreement. The total outstanding contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does not necessarily represent future cash requirements, since many of these commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.

Operational risk management

Operational risk covers risk of losses arising from inadequate internal processes, human and system errors or external factors. 

Operational risk management in Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. set the following scopes of responsibility:

· organizational units - responsible for operational risk occurring in their areas (risk identification, self-assessment, loss reporting),

· operational risk team – responsible for co-ordination of the operational risk management process (system development, providing support to units, reporting, creation of data base on losses),

· Audit – responsible for control and assessment of the operational risk management quality (independent assessment of operational risk management process quality, reviews of risk identification standard in organizational units, assessment of controls).

Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. developed IT System Security Standards which cover issues related to security of the processed information, supervision of their implementation, assessment of projects in terms of their compliance with applicable standard, risk analysis while making changes to IT systems, on-going analysis of information relating to information confidentiality threats.

Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. supervises the implementation of the Group’s policy in the area of business continuity management, co-operates with business units in this respect, analyses needs, develops plans in this area.

Other operational risk areas on which Bank Zachodni WBK Group focuses are:

· Money laundering,

· Operational risk self-assessment and analysis,

· Fraud prevention,

· Personal data protection

4.2.15. Application of the hedge accounting principles while taking account the break-down into the goodwill hedging, cash flow hedging and hedging of the investment in the entity. 

Entities of Bank Zachodni WBK Group do not apply the hedge accounting.

4.2.16. In the case of hedging a planned transaction or probable future liability, provide information about the purposes and principles of financial risk management, taking account of a break-down into hedges of basic types of planned transactions or probable future liabilities.  

Entities of Bank Zachodni WBK Group do not apply the hedge accounting.

4.2.17. If gains or losses on the valuation of hedging instruments, being both financial derivatives as well as assets or liabilities of a different profile, in the case of cash flow hedging impacted the revaluation reserve. 

Entities of Bank Zachodni WBK Group do not apply the hedge accounting.

5. Concluded option, subscription and share sales contracts

Put option re.  AWSA HOLLAND II B.V. interests

Since 1998 the bank has held a put option for 83 927 interests in AWSA HOLLAND II B.V. for the benefit of Kulczyk Holding S.A. and TUiR Warta S.A. or an entity indicated by them jointly and  provided there is a prior consent of the Bank.

On 29 April 2002 the option tenor was extended until 6 December 2002 At the same time Kulczyk Holding S.A. was granted a call option, which will allow it to buy the same number of interests from the bank on similar terms and conditions.

On 6 December 2002, the interests of AWSA HOLLAND II B.V. covered by the option were sold by the bank (83 927 shares). The payment was split into installments. The first installment of PLN 11 510k was paid on 10 December 2002. The payment of the second installment of  PLN 21 247k is due on 31 October 2003 (an early repayment – acceptable). This installment is interest bearing, and the interest amount depends on the date of the second installment payment.

Agreement on disposal of shares in PB POLSOFT Sp. z o.o.

On 20 December 2002, Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. concluded a conditional agreement on disposal of 1 020 interests in PROJEKTY BANKOWE POLSOFT Sp. z o.o., for the benefit of  COMPUTERLAND S.A. The number of interest to be sold represents 51% of the share capital and votes at the Annual General Meeting of Partners. The agreement shall become effective, subject to the prior permit of the Competition and Consumer Protection Office, consents of  the Supervisory Boards of the Companies entering into the transaction and a positive output of the due diligence conducted by COMPUTERLAND S.A. in PROJEKTY BANKOWE POLSOFT Sp. z o.o.

The total sale price is PLN 19 267k. 

Supervisory Boards of both Companies agreed to enter into the transaction.

6. Assets which constitute a security for own liabilities and liabilities of a third party and the value of liabilities which are secured by these assets.

As at 31 December 2002, debt securities in Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. represented the security for an advance from a Banking Guarantee Fund. Details are described in the Note 6B.

In addition, BZ WBK Finance&Leasing S.A. and BZ WBK Leasing S.A. granted security for liabilities in the form of assignment of receivables from lease contracts.  

The value of liabilities arising from loan agreements subject to security:

- PLN 115 333.4k,

-   EUR 48 844.3k,

-   CHF 27 421.4k.

7. Repo/reverse repo transactions not included in the balance sheet

As at 31 December 2002, Bank Zachodni WBK Group did not have any repo/reverse repo transactions that would not be included in the balance sheet.

8. Granted financial liabilities including irrevocable liabilities

Letter of credit backing the payment for bonds of AUTOSTRADA WIELKOPOLSKA  S.A.

On 31 October 2000, the Bank took up 1,752 B series bonds of Autostrada Wielkopolska S.A. The bonds held by the Bank represent ca 5% of all issued bonds. The purchase price is the PLN equivalent of EUR 6,250k. The final redemption date is 31 May 2037.

Payment for taking up the bonds was backed with a letter of credit opened for that purpose. The draw-downs are in PLN based on the exchange rate as at the draw-down dates. At any time, AW S.A. can demand a payment of a subsequent tranche. By 31 December 2002, the draw-down from the letter of credit totaled PLN 7 579k, which represents the equivalent of EUR 1 947k. The equivalent of EUR 4 302k  is still to be repaid. In line with the adopted schedule, the total amount is to be repaid by the end of 2004.

Unpaid part of the share capital of COMMERCIAL UNION POLSKA TOWARZYSTWO UBEZPIECZEŃ NA ŻYCIE S.A.

Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. has 4,125 shares of COMMERCIAL UNION POLSKA TOWARZYSTWO UBEZPIECZEŃ NA ŻYCIE S.A. with the total nominal value of PLN 8,250k. The shares were taken up in two parts: in December 1992 for PLN 145k and in December 1999 for PLN 8,721k. As a result, the total value of the purchased shares is PLN 8,867k. However, in 1999, the share capital was not paid by all shareholders. The unpaid part from the Bank is PLN 821.k and represents its liability towards the Company. So far, there has been no need to pay the outstanding amount, as the Company’s standing did not require obtaining funds from that source.

Unpaid part of the share capital of WBK Nieruchomości S.A. i Wspólnicy Spółka komandytowa

Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. is a limited partner in WBK Nieruchomości S.A. i Wspólnicy Sp. Komandytowa. The Bank participates in the Company’s profits and losses pro rata to its contribution, i.e. 99.99%. The amount which the Bank is committed to contribute is PLN 41,995k.  As at 31 December 2002, the unpaid amount was PLN 4,311k and represented the Bank’s liability. Up to date, there has been no need to make the outstanding contribution as the Company’s standing did not required obtaining funds from that source.

BZ WBK Nieruchomości S.A.

Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. has a 99.99% shareholding in BZ WBK Nieruchomości S.A. The Company’s share capital totals PLN 100k. In line with art. 308 § 1 and art. 624 § 2 of the Commercial Companies Code, the share capital in joint stock companies should be at least PLN 500k. The share capital must be increased up to PLN 250k by 2003-end, and up to PLN 500k by 2005-end. It is planned that all shares of the new issue will be taken up by Bank Zachodni WBK S.A.

Events after balance sheet date  

BZ WBK Inwestycje Sp. z o.o.

On 23 January 2003, the Extraordinary Annual General Meeting of BZ WBK Inwestycje Sp. z o.o. adopted a resolution of making contributions by shareholders. On foot of this, on 31 January 2003, BZ WBK S.A. made an contribution of PLN 400k.

9. Information about off-balance sheet liabilities, in particular about contingent liabilities including a list of  sanctioned civil law and bank guarantees (also b/e and other commitments of a guarantee nature), highlighting the ones granted to connected entities.

	Contingent liabilities – granted and received



	
	31.12.2002
	31.12.2001

	Granted liabilities:
	3 654 523
	3 126 213

	- financing-related
	2 975 302
	2 478 723

	   Of which: import letters of credit
	99 753
	70 807

	   Of which: credit lines
	2 698 266
	-

	- guarantees
	679 221
	647 490*

	  Of which: confirmed export letters of credit
	-
	-

	Received liabilities
	1 116 635
	792 006

	- bank
	1 116 509
	792 006

	- subsidiaries
	126
	-

	Total
	4 771 158
	3 918 219


As at 31 December 2002, the bank granted guarantees for the total of PLN 679 221k, of which PLN 2 057k represents the guarantees granted to subordinated entities /BZ WBK Finanse & Leasing S.A. and WBK Nieruchomości Sp. z o.o./.

The list of granted guarantees is presented below:

	
	

	Guarantees granted by the bank /exclusive of connected entities/
	677 164

	Guarantees granted by the bank to the connected entities:
	2 057   

	                  BZ WBK Finanse&Leasing S.A.
	2 037

	                  WBK Nieruchomości Sp. z o.o.
	20


* /31.12.2001r./ The total of off-balance sheet liabilities (granted guarantees) of PLN 647,490 toward subsidiaries  include the guarantees issued to Dom Maklerski BZ WBK S.A.(Brokerage House)of PLN 143k and to WBK Nieruchomości S.A. of  PLN 18k. 

	Liabilities related to sell/buy transactions



	
	31.12.2002
	31.12.2001

	1. Fx transactions
	41 339 265
	46 505 425

	- bought foreign currencies
	20 642 310
	22 910 281

	- sold foreign currencies
	20 683 298
	23 546 733

	- differences arising from SWAPs
	13 657
	48 411

	2. dealings in securities
	182 340
	-

	- securities to be released
	20 380
	-

	- securities to be received
	161 960
	-

	3. Transactions in financial instruments
	6 590 731
	5 014 864

	- bought
	3 582 186
	2 768 145

	- sold
	3 008 545
	2 246 719

	Total
	48 112 336
	51 520 289


10. Information about the proposed dividend payment if it has not been formally approved, and also about not disclosed cumulated dividends from preferred shares.

In line with the Bank’s strategy re. dividend payment, BZWBK will earmark 19.97%  of the audited after-tax-profit for the 2002 shareholders’ dividend (PLN  270 356k). 

The dividend per share will be PLN  0.74 (PLN 0.42 for 2001)  - number of shares:  72 960 284.

11. Information about the dividend approved for payment. 

Bank Zachodni WBK Group has not formally approved the dividend yet.

12. Liabilities towards the State Treasury or local government units arising from gaining the ownership title to buildings and premises

As at 31 December 2002, Bank Zachodni WBK Group did not have any liabilities towards the State Treasury or local authorities arising from gaining the ownership title to buildings or premises.

13. Income, costs and impact of discontinued operations in the accounting period or of the operations planned to be discontinued in the next period. 

In 2002 there were no costs or income related to discontinued operations in Bank Zachodni WBK Group.

14. Costs of commenced investments, fixed assets and development for the bank’s own needs 

31.12.2002

As at 31 December 2002, the investments commenced in Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. were PLN 16 356k. Commenced investments in hardware and other assets of the Bank totaled PLN 5 760k, and the construction investments as well as the original furnishing of outlets totaled PLN 10 596k.

31.12.2001

As at 31 December 2001, the fixed assets under construction in Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. were PLN 329 213k. The commenced investments in hardware and other assets of the Bank totaled to PLN 299 174k, and the construction investments and the original furnishing of outlets totaled PLN 30 039k.

Pursuant to finance lease contracts, Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. utilizes fixed assets of the gross value totaling PLN 201.7k as at 31 December 2002.

Part of fixed assets such as hardware, vehicles and multimedia equipment are used by Bank Zachodni WBK S.A on the basis of operating lease contracts. The value of those fixed assets is posted in the lessor’s books. The bank runs the off balance sheet register according to the market value and VAT tax as at the day of leasing the fixed asset out to Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. The value of these assets totals PLN 14 260k.

15. The capital outlays incurred and to be incurred in the upcoming 12 months from the balance sheet date, including outlays for non-financial fixed assets

The capital expenditures incurred by Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. in 2002 totaled PLN 228 735k, including:

· information technology

- PLN 158 623k,

· real estate and other fixed assets 
- PLN 70 113k.

As regards the group of IT projects, the largest outlays were incurred for the realization of ICBS software license with Fiserv (Europe) Limited (B1) - PLN 120 432k. As at December 31 2002, 324 branches were already ICBS ones.

The capital outlays (cash flows) of Bank Zachodni WBK planned to be incurred in 2003 are PLN 200 415k, of which:

· information technology 

- PLN 181 392k,

· real estate and other fixed assets 
- PLN 19 023k.

In 2002, subsidiaries of Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. incurred capital outlays of PLN 5 559.72k, whereas the planned outlays for 2003 total PLN 3 786.8k.

16.1 Information about the issuer’s transactions with connected entities, including entities connected with Bank Zachodni WBK in terms of the capital or organization as stipulated by the Banking Law, with regard to transferring rights and liabilities, taking account of the Bank’s credit policy and a percentage share related to transactions with these entities

	31.12.2002r.
	Total
	Dom Maklerski BZ WBK S.A.
	BZ WBK Finanse&Leasing S.A.
	BZ WBK Leasing S.A.
	WBK Nieruchomości i Wspólnicy Spółka Komandytowa
	BZ WBK Inwestycje Sp. z o.o.
	AIB WBK Fund Management S.A.
	WBK AIB Asset Management S.A.
	WBK AIB Towarzystwo Funduszy Inwestycyjnych
	BZ WBK Nieruchomości S.A.
	Brytyjsko-Polskie Towarzystwo Finansowe WBK CU Sp. Z o.o.
	Projekty Bankowe Polsoft Sp. Z o.o.
	PPLFUND-Fundusz Poręczeń Kredytowych S.A.

	Amounts due from financial sector
	439 251
	35
	192 793
	243 354
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	69
	-
	-

	1. Short-term receivables
	162 961
	35
	82 657
	80 200
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	69
	-
	-

	a) in current account
	46 748
	35
	44 047
	2 617
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	49
	-
	-

	b) other short-term receivables 
	116 213
	-
	38 610
	77 583
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	20
	-
	-

	2. Long-term
	276 290
	-
	113 136
	163 154
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Amounts due from non-financial sector
	760
	-
	-
	-
	-
	718
	42
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	1. Short-term receivables
	760
	-
	-
	-
	-
	718
	42
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	a) in current account
	42
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	42
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	b) other short-term receivables
	718
	-
	-
	-
	-
	718
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	2. Long-term receivables
	
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Other assets 
	2 390
	18
	2
	18
	-
	-
	194
	-
	-
	-
	138
	-
	2 020

	TOTAL
	442 401
	53
	195 795
	243 372
	-
	718
	236
	-
	-
	-
	207
	-
	2 020

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	% share
	100 %
	0.01 %
	44.26 %
	55.01 %
	-
	0.16 %
	0.05 %
	-
	-
	-
	0.05 %
	-
	0.46 %

	31.12.2001
	Total
	Dom Maklerski BZ WBK S.A.
	BZ WBK Finanse&Leasing S.A.
	BZ WBK Leasing S.A.
	WBK Nieruchomości i Wspólnicy Spółka Komandytowa
	BZ WBK Inwestycje Sp. z o.o.
	AIB WBK Fund Management S.A.
	WBK AIB Asset Management S.A.
	WBK AIB Towarzystwo Funduszy Inwestycyjnych
	BZ WBK Nieruchomości S.A.
	Brytyjsko-Polskie Towarzystwo Finansowe WBK CU Sp. Z o.o.
	Projekty Bankowe Polsoft Sp. Z o.o.
	PPLFUND-Fundusz Poręczeń Kredytowych S.A.

	Amounts due from the financial sector
	158 329
	28
	143 764
	14 537
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	1. Short-term receivables
	28
	28
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	a) in current account
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	b) other short-term receivables
	28
	28
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	2. Long-term receivables
	158 301
	-
	143 764
	14 537
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Amounts due from non-financial sector
	941
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	917
	-
	-
	24
	-
	-
	-

	1. Short-term receivables
	434
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	410
	-
	-
	24
	-
	-
	-

	a) in current account
	410
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	410
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	b) other short-term receivables
	24
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	24
	-
	-
	-

	2. Long-term receivables
	507
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	507
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Other assets
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	TOTAL
	159 270
	28
	143 764
	14 537
	-
	-
	917
	-
	-
	24
	-
	-
	-

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	% share
	100 %
	0.02 %
	90.26 %
	9.13 %
	-
	-
	0.58 %
	-
	-
	0.02 %
	-
	-
	-


	31.12.2002
	Total
	Dom Maklerski BZ WBK S.A.
	BZ WBK Finanse&Leasing S.A.
	BZ WBK Leasing S.A.
	WBK Nieruchomości i Wspólnicy Spółka Komandytowa
	BZ WBK Inwestycje Sp. z o.o.
	AIB WBK Fund Management S.A.
	WBK AIB Asset Management S.A.
	WBK AIB Towarzystwo Funduszy Inwestycyjnych
	BZ WBK Nieruchomości S.A.
	Brytyjsko-Polskie Towarzystwo Finansowe WBK CU Sp. Z o.o.
	Projekty Bankowe Polsoft Sp. Z o.o.
	PPLFUND-Fundusz Poręczeń Kredytowych S.A.
	NFI Magna S.A.

	Amounts due to financial sector
	160 222
	149 513
	1 465
	128
	7 002
	-
	-
	292
	486
	19
	642
	675
	-
	-

	1. Short-term liabilities
	160 208
	149 513
	1 465
	128
	7 002
	-
	-
	292
	486
	5
	642
	675
	-
	-

	a) in current account
	8 239
	4 687
	1 465
	128
	-
	-
	-
	156
	486
	-
	642
	675
	-
	-

	b) other short-term liabilities
	151 969
	144 826
	-
	-
	7 002
	-
	-
	136
	-
	5
	-
	-
	-
	-

	2. Long-term liabilities
	14
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	14
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Amounts due to non- financial sector
	102 677
	-
	-
	-
	-
	311
	12
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	106
	102 848

	1. Short-term liabilities
	102 677
	-
	-
	-
	-
	311
	12
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	106
	102 248

	a) in current account
	39
	-
	-
	-
	-
	2
	9
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	28

	b) other short-term liabilities
	102 638
	-
	-
	-
	-
	309
	3
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	106
	102 220

	2. Long-term liabilities
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Other liabilities
	4 429
	46
	2 151
	2 232
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	TOTAL
	267 328
	149 559
	3 616
	2 360
	7 002
	311
	12
	292
	486
	19
	642
	675
	106
	102 848

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	% share
	100%
	55.95%
	1.35%
	0.88%
	2.62%
	0.12%
	0.00%
	0.11%
	0.18%
	0.01%
	0.24%
	0.25%
	0.04%
	38.25%


	31.12.2001
	Total
	Dom Maklerski BZ WBK S.A.
	BZ WBK Finanse&Leasing S.A.
	BZ WBK Leasing S.A.
	WBK Nieruchomości i Wspólnicy Spółka Komandytowa
	BZ WBK Inwestycje Sp. z o.o.
	AIB WBK Fund Management S.A.
	WBK AIB Asset Management S.A.
	WBK AIB Towarzystwo Funduszy Inwestycyjnych
	BZ WBK Nieruchomości S.A.
	Brytyjsko-Polskie Towarzystwo Finansowe WBK CU Sp. Z o.o.
	Projekty Bankowe Polsoft Sp. Z o.o.
	PPLFUND-Fundusz Poręczeń Kredytowych S.A.

	Amounts due to financial sector
	200 933
	192 496
	5 799
	2 317
	-
	-
	-
	185
	-
	-
	136
	-
	-

	1. Short-term liabilities
	177 450
	169 013
	5 799
	2 317
	-
	-
	-
	185
	-
	-
	136
	-
	-

	a) in current account
	15 286
	6 852
	5 799
	2 317
	-
	-
	-
	182
	-
	-
	136
	-
	-

	b) other short-term liabilities
	162 164
	162 161
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	3
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	2. Long-term liabilities
	23 483
	23 483
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Amounts due to non- financial sector
	6 689
	-
	-
	-
	3 022
	-
	1 044
	-
	-
	56
	-
	2 567
	-

	1. Short-term liabilities
	6 689
	-
	-
	-
	3 022
	-
	1 044
	-
	-
	56
	-
	2 567
	-

	a) in current account
	18
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	18
	-
	-
	-

	b) other short-term liabilities
	6 671
	-
	-
	-
	3 022
	-
	1 044
	-
	-
	38
	-
	2 567
	-

	2. Long-term liabilities
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Other liabilities
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	TOTAL
	207 622
	192 496
	5 799
	2 317
	3 022
	-
	1 044
	185
	-
	56
	136
	2 567
	-

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	% share
	100 %
	92.71 %
	2.79 %
	1.12 %
	1.46 %
	-
	0.5 %
	0.09 %
	-
	0.03 %
	0.07 %
	1.24 %
	-


	31.12.2002
	Total
	Dom Maklerski BZ WBK S.A.
	BZ WBK Finanse&Leasing S.A.
	BZ WBK Leasing S.A.
	WBK Nieruchomości i Wspólnicy Spółka Komandytowa
	BZ WBK Inwestycje Sp. z o.o.
	AIB WBK Fund Management S.A.
	WBK AIB Asset Management S.A.
	WBK AIB Towarzystwo Funduszy Inwestycyjnych
	BZ WBK Nieruchomości S.A.
	Brytyjsko-Polskie Towarzystwo Finansowe WBK CU Sp. Z o.o.
	Projekty Bankowe Polsoft Sp. Z o.o.
	PPLFUND-Fundusz Poręczeń Kredytowych S.A.

	Interest income
	14 958
	10
	9 104
	5 774
	-
	-
	70
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Interest expense
	16 805
	12 993
	2 489
	724
	397
	5
	68
	9
	9
	-
	12
	99
	-

	Commission income
	950
	415
	265
	212
	-
	-
	33
	3
	1
	-
	8
	13
	-

	Commission expense
	155
	155
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	FX profits
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Other operating income
	5 940
	2 778
	275
	64
	-
	9
	611
	180
	1 373
	650
	-
	-
	-

	Other operating expenses
	13 756
	-
	4
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	28
	-
	-
	13 724
	-

	Costs of the bank’s operations and of general management 
	1 730
	47
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	1 683
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	TOTAL
	54 294
	16 398
	12 137
	6 774
	397
	14
	782
	1 875
	1 411
	650
	20
	13 836
	-

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	% share
	100 %
	30.20 %
	22.35 %
	12.48 %
	0.73 %
	0.03 %
	1.44 %
	3.45 %
	2.60 %
	1.20 %
	0.04 %
	25.48 %
	-


	31.12.2001
	Total
	Dom Maklerski BZ WBK S.A.
	BZ WBK Finanse&Leasing S.A.
	BZ WBK Leasing S.A.
	WBK Nieruchomości i Wspólnicy Spółka Komandytowa
	BZ WBK Inwestycje Sp. z o.o.
	AIB WBK Fund Management S.A.
	WBK AIB Asset Management S.A.
	WBK AIB Towarzystwo Funduszy Inwestycyjnych
	BZ WBK Nieruchomości S.A.
	Brytyjsko-Polskie Towarzystwo Finansowe WBK CU Sp. Z o.o.
	Projekty Bankowe Polsoft Sp. Z o.o.
	PPLFUND-Fundusz Poręczeń Kredytowych S.A.

	Interest income
	9 426
	12
	7 887
	131
	1 332
	-
	59
	-
	-
	5
	-
	-
	-

	Interest expense
	27 148
	24 919
	754
	824
	348
	-
	98
	58
	-
	11
	136
	-
	-

	Commission income
	548
	452
	27
	22
	-
	-
	32
	-
	-
	4
	-
	11
	-

	Commission expense
	1 265
	264
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	1
	1 000
	-

	FX profits
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Other operating income
	5 208
	3 689
	758
	-
	-
	-
	-
	45
	-
	-

716
	-
	-
	-

	Other operating expenses
	11 094
	306
	-
	144
	-
	-
	-
	4 227
	-
	2
	-
	6 415
	-

	Costs of the bank’s operations and of general management 
	1 000
	
	-
	-
	-
	-
	1 000
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

	TOTAL
	55 689
	29 642
	9 426
	1 121
	1 680
	-
	1 189
	4 330
	-
	738
	137
	7 426
	-

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	% share
	100 %
	53,23 %
	16,93%
	2,01%
	3,02%
	-
	2,14%
	7,78%
	-
	1,33%
	0,25%
	13,33%
	-


16.2. Data related to connected entities on:

a) receivables and liabilities

b) costs and income, including interest and commissions, costs of provisions for loans and advances

c) granted financial liabilities, including irrevocable ones

d) other information necessary for producing the consolidated financial statements

Information about receivables, liabilities, costs and income is included in the Note above. Costs of provisions for loans and advances are presented in the table below: 

	
	Dom Maklerski BZ WBK S.A.
	BZ WBK Finanse&Leasing S.A.
	BZ WBK Leasing S.A.
	WBK Nieruchomości i Wspólnicy Spółka Komandytowa
	BZ WBK Inwestycje Sp. z o.o.
	AIB WBK Fund Management S.A.
	WBK AIB Asset Management S.A.
	WBK AIB Towarzystwo Funduszy Inwestycyjnych

	Provisions for loans
	398
	6 584
	27 684
	X
	X
	X
	X
	X


17. Information on joint enterprises which are not subject to consolidation

In 2002, Bank Zachodni WBK Group did not participate in joint undertakings with entities, which are not subject to consolidation on line-by-line basis  or  under the equity method

18. Income and costs of Bank Zachodni WBK’s brokerage operations

Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. does not conduct brokerage operations. 

In Bank Zachodni WBK Group, the following subsidiaries run brokerage operations: Dom Maklerski BZ WBK S.A. and BZ WBK AIB Asset Management S.A. Income from brokerage operations in 2002 totaled PLN 34 659k with the costs totaling PLN 40 756k.

19. Write offs of irrecoverable receivables against costs, broken into titles of write offs and manners of write offs – against the raised provisions, against costs on financial operations and against the other operating costs, with the specifications of losses incurred due to loans and advances.

When charging off receivables, the BZ WBK S.A. Charge off and Write Off Manual introduced by way of Management Board Member’s Ordinance no. 221/2001 dated 7 December, 2001 with subsequent amendments  applies. 

The said regulations stipulate that charge off against provisions can be applied only to receivables in the case of which the raised provision covers the whole principal to be charged off (except for cases when only interest is charged off).

As at  31 December  2002  charge-offs, write-offs and disposals of receivables totalled PLN 432 508k. The amount includes gross value of sold debts of  PLN 43 172k. 

In 2002, BZ WBK Leasing S.A. and BZ WBK Finance&Leasing S.A. raised provisions for irrecoverable receivables of PLN 12 096.49k (charged to costs).

20. Costs of raising provisions for future liabilities to staff with a break-down into individual categories 

The costs related to raising provisions for future liabilities towards the staff of Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. as at 31 December 2002 were as follows: 

· provision for bonuses 




- PLN 10 740k,

· provision for awards





-  PLN 6 700k,

· provision for ZUS contributions



-  PLN 3 764k.

Costs related to creating provisions for future liabilities toward employees of subsidiaries as at 31 December 2002 were: 

· reserve for bonuses 




- PLN 269k,

· reserve for ZUS




-   PLN 24k,

· reserve for holiday leaves 



-  PLN 116k,

· reserve for remuneration and awards
  

 - PLN 296k.

21. Costs incurred for financing staff pension schemes 

Bank Zachodni WBK Group does not incur costs related to financing staff pension schemes.

22. Conducted custodian operations

Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. does not run custodian operations, but through its Custodian Services Office it keeps  assets for the benefit of third parties. Profit on these operations in 2002 was PLN 26k.

Brokerage and custodian operations in Bank Zachodni WBK Group are conducted by BZ WBK AIB Asset Management S.A., which is discussed in point 18 of Additional Notes.

23. Asset securatisation

Bank Zachodni WBK Group does not apply asset securitisation.

24. Average staffing level with a break-down into professional groups

31.12.2002.

As at 31 December 2002, manpower in Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. totaled 9 115.75 FTEs. 

As at that day, the Bank employed 9 169 persons.

Average headcount in Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. in 2002 was at 9 504.13 FTEs and 9 569 staff.

Average staff number in Bank Zachodni WBK subsidiaries in 2002 was 356.11 (329.22 FTEs).

The Table below presents the employment structure in Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. with a break-down according to education:

	Education 
	No. of staff
	Structure %

	University/college degree
	4 649
	50.70 %

	High school degree
	4 321
	47.10 %

	Primary/vocational
	72
	0.80 %

	Other
	127
	1.40 %

	Total
	9 169
	100%


31.12.2001.

As at 31 December 2001, the staffing level in Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. totaled 9 764 FTEs. In 2001, the average  headcount in Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. was at PLN 10 403 FTEs.

Average staff number in Bank Zachodni WBK subsidiaries in 2001 was 260 (255 FTEs).

The Table below presents the employment structure in Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. with a break-down according to education:

	Education 
	No. of staff
	Structure %

	University/college degree
	4 522
	46.3%

	High school degree
	5 133
	52.6%

	Primary/vocational
	109
	1.1%

	Total
	9 764
	100%


25. Remuneration and bonuses (both in cash and in kind) paid or due to (separately) members of the Management Board and Supervisory Board of the issuer in the issuer’s company, irrespective of whether they were taken to costs or resulted from the distribution of profit, and, where the issuer is a dominant entity or a majority investor, separately for the remuneration and bonuses received as a result of holding a position in subsidiary, interdependent and associated undertakings (separately for each of the groups)

31.12.2002.

According to the information received by Bank Zachodni WBK S.A., the remuneration paid to the members of the Management Board of Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. in 2002 and the members of the Supervisory Board totalled PLN 8,867k and PLN 403k, respectively.

In 2002, none of the Members of the Supervisory Board of Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. received remuneration from subsidiaries or associated entities.

Total remuneration for the management of companies composing Bank Zachodni WBK Group in 2002 totaled PLN 2 757.85k.

31.12.2001.

Remuneration paid to the members of the Management Board and the Supervisory Board of Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. in 2001 totalled PLN 12,044k and PLN 422k respectively.

In 2001, members of the Management Board received remuneration from subsidiaries and associated entities totalling PLN 119k.

In 2001, none of the members of the Supervisory Board of Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. received remuneration from subsidiary and associated undertakings.  

26. Non-repaid advance payments, loans, borrowings, guarantees, civil law guarantees or other agreements representing receivables of the issuer, its subsidiary, interdependent and associated undertakings, with information on the interest rate and the repayment details of the amounts granted by the issuer and separately by the subsidiary, interdependent and associated undertakings (separately for each of the groups) to members of the Management Board and Supervisory Board as well as to the employees of the issuer, separately for the members of the Management Board and Supervisory Board and the employees as well as, separately, for the spouses, relatives and next of kin, adopted children or adoptive parents as well as other persons to which members of the Management Board and the Supervisory Board are personally connected, along with the information on the interest rate and the repayment details. 

As at 31 December 2002, members of the Supervisory Board of Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. did not obtain any loans, borrowings or guarantees from Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. or subsidiary or associated undertakings. 

The balance of borrowings sanctioned to the members of the Management Board of Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. by the Bank as at 31 December 2002 totalled PLN 33k and CHF 28k.

The balance of borrowings sanctioned to relatives and next of kin of the Members of the Management Board of the Bank totalled PLN 149k, CHF 58k and EUR 25k. All borrowings were sanctioned based on the general terms and conditions as specified in the Bank’s offering. 

The balance of borrowings from the Company’s Social Fund granted to the employees of Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. as at 31 December 2002 totalled PLN 21 492k and the balance of borrowings granted to the Management Board totalled PLN 15k. The borrowings were sanctioned to the employees pursuant to the general terms and conditions offered by the Fund. 

The amount of loans (including loans from The Company's Social Fund) granted to the staff of Bank Zachodni WBK subsidiaries totalled PLN 23k.  

For 31 December 2002 total amount of advances for employees in  Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. was 983 thousand zł and PLN 7k in associates    

As at 31 December 2001, the value of guarantees granted by Members of the Supervisory Board which generate obligations for the benefit of Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. totaled PLN 13.6k (interest on the liability: 20.5%) and loans granted by Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. to the Supervisory Board Members totaled PLN 20,5k (interest: 20.75%, 29.46%, 30.42% - in line with the credit cards regulations).

Loans granted by Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. for the Management Board Members totaled PLN 42,8k. (interest on the liability 20.75%, 29.46%, and 30.42% - in line with the credit cards regulations).

Members of the Supervisory and Management Boards of Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. did not operate any advances, loans, or guarantees from the Bank’s associated or subsidiary undertakings.

Spouses of Management and Supervisory Board Members, their relatives, kins up to the second degree, persons adopted or being in the course of adoption or any other persons with whom the Bank’s Management and Supervisory Board Members are personally connected have not benefited from any loans, cash advances or guarantees granted by Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. as well as its subsidiary and associated undertakings.

27. Significant events related to previous years included in the financial statements for the period 

The financial statements for the period include all significant events related to previous years.  

28. Significant post-Balance-Sheet date events which were not reflected in the financial statements 

After the balance sheet date, no significant events, which might impact the information included in the financial statements of Bank Zachodni WBK Group, happened.

29. Significant events in the accounting year triggering substantial change in the structure of the Balance Sheet and the financial result

As a result of the introduction of the amended Accounting Act as of January 1, 2002, Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. introduced changes, which are described in the Additional Notes in point 32, to the financial statement in line with the new regulations. The same point also presents the Balance Sheet, changed in line with the new principles, as at 31 December 2001, as an adjusted opening balance where the new principles of asset valuation are taken into account.

In the same point, the balance sheet as at 31 December 2001 modified according to the new principles is presented as a modified opening balance as at 01.01.2002 – it reflects effects of new principles of asset valuation, consolidated balance sheet and income statement (“pro forma”) for 2001.

30. The relations between the legal predecessor and the issuer as well as on the method and the scope of taking over assets and liabilities. 

Bank Zachodni WBK Group did not participate in any merger in 2002.

31. Financial statements and comparable financial data, at least in relation to the key Balance Sheet and the P&L Account lines adjusted by relevant inflation rate, indicating the source of the rate and the application methods, taking the last financial statement as the base period – if the accumulated average annual inflation rate from the past three years of the issuer’s operations has reached or exceeded 100%

The recent years in Poland did not witness inflation rate above 20% - accumulated average annual inflation rate from the previous three years was below 100% - therefore, there was no need to adjust the financial data in the financial statement with a relevant inflation rate.

32. Specification of differences, along with explanations, between the data disclosed in the financial statement and the comparable financial data and the previously produced and published financial statements. 

The 2002 data presented in the annual report of Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. were produced in line with the existing accounting principles arising from the currently applicable regulations.

As compared to the consolidated Q4 2002 report published on 19 February 2003, the following items were reclassified: 

· “Accruals” to “Other deferred income” – PLN 5,249k,

         (reclassification of suspended revenues related to lease services – interest, additional fees),  

· “Accruals” to  “Other provisions” 
– PLN 45k, 

 (reclassification of cost accruals).   

Following the above reclassification, relevant items in the Cash Flow Statement were adjusted. 

The 2001 comparable data presented in the financial statement of Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. as at 31 December 2002 take account of the changes in the manner of presentation, arising from the amended “Accounting Act” applicable as of 1 January 2002 and relevant executive regulations, to the extent possible for practical reasons. 

The applied approach is compliant with IAS 8, §54, which waives the obligation “to apply changes to the accounting principles with retroactive effectiveness” in a situation where “there is no possibility to reasonably agree the amount of all adjustments referring to the previous periods and triggered by the change”. In such a case, “the comparable data should be presented in exactly the same way as in the financial statement for the previous period”. For information purposes, “the comparable data should be only prepared ‘pro forma’ unless this is not feasible for practical reasons”. 

Changes in the presentation of data as at 31 December 2001 the aim of which was to make this data comparable to the 2002 data, refer to the following lines:

	Item
	31.12.2001

	perpetual usufruct of land was taken to fixed assets instead of intangible assets 
	536



	costs of organization and its subsequent development of the joint stock company were taken to prepayments instead of intangible assets 


	311



	fixed assets taken to BS (operating lease)  - previously they represented OBS item 
	3 691



	break-down of amounts due from/deposits of the public sector in a separate line in the BS; so far they have been disclosed along with the amounts due from/deposits of the non-financial sector

· deposits of the non-financial sector 

· amounts due from the public sector 

· deposits of the non-financial sector

· amounts due from the public sector


	10 245 078

385 300

17 554 233

1 159 974



	securities acquired at an order previously disclosed under “shares or interests in other entities”, now disclosed under “reverse repo transactions” 


	43 724



	Settlements arising from options were moved from item “Other assets” to item “Other securities and other financial assets” 
	59 090

	Settlements arising from derivatives were moved from “Prepayments” to item “Other securities and other assets”
	411 674



	Provisions for costs to be incurred and other provisions presented earlier in item Other provisions are moved to item accruals related to costs. 


	100 309



	Presenting the deferred tax in B/S in two lines: as a deferred tax provision and deferred tax

· bank

· Dom Maklerski BZ WBK S.A.
	203 402

105



	Liabilities in AriMR were moved from “Liabilities towards non-financial sector to “Liabilities towards the state-budget sector”
	2 701

	Settlements arising from options were moved from item “Specific funds and other liabilities” to item “Other liabilities arising from financial instruments”
	5 633

	The provision for debatable items was moved from item “Accruals related to costs” to item “Other provisions”
	19 763

	Settlement arising from derivatives of financial instruments was moved from item “Accruals related to costs” to item “Other liabilities arising from financial instruments”
	226 855

	Moving the dividend between items “Results on financial operations” and “Income from interests or shares, other securities and other financial instruments with a variable income’
	15 560

	Income and costs arising from fixed assets were presented as one item (resulting from the deduction of costs from income); movements were made between “Other operating costs” and  “Other operating income”
	14 676

	The depreciation of fixed tangible assets was moved from “Charges to specific provisions and to the Bank’s general risk” to “Other operating costs”  
	14 833

	Movements were made between “The release of specific provisions for the Bank’s general risk” and the “Update of financial assets”
	33 232

	Limiting the scope of events whose results are taken to extraordinary losses and profit; the results of events related to the general risk of operations are stated as operating costs or income

( profit

( losses
	220

263


The off-balance items included in Others” were changed:

- PLN 1 517 415k 
- collateral for BFG loan and lombard loan ,

- PLN 1 220 316k 
- guarantee collateral.
 

As a result of the introduced changes, relevant items in the cash flow report were adjusted.

Opening balance changed in line with the amended Accounting Act 

The comparable data as at 31 December 2001 was not adjusted in terms of the valuation of assets. However, if the adjustments related to the valuation of assets and arising from the changes in the Accounting Act, had been introduced in the previous period, their impact on the net assets of the Bank would not differ substantially from the impact of these adjustments on the net assets of the Bank as at January 1, 2002.

The opening balance for the financial statement produced as at 31 December 2002 was adjusted by the valuation of financial assets available for sale at the fair value and, and the valuation of shares based on equity method. The results were taken to revaluation reserve and retained profit from previous years in the opening balance. 

These changes were presented in the relevant notes as the adjustments of the opening balance.

The Table below presents individual data published as at 31 December 2001 for the Bank as well as the same data, after they have been changed in line with the regulations applicable as of 1 January 2002.

As a result of the valuation of BS assets, deferred tax from valuation was disclosed and taken to revaluation reserve and the result from the previous years.

Moreover, adjustment arising from the raised provision for holidays, adjustment of the depreciation costs as well as costs capitalised previously in the balance sheet were taken to the retained profit from the previous years.

	Balance Sheet
	As at 

31-12-2001 
	Costs of the company’s organisation settled over time 
	Perpetual usufruct of land
	Leased fixed assets taken to the opening balance
	Valuation
	Reclassification
	Balance as at 

1-01-2002 

	A s s e t s
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	I. Cash and balances with the Central Bank 
	1 316 242
	
	
	
	
	
	1 316 242

	II. Debt securities with the right to rediscount in the Central Bank 
	-
	
	
	
	
	
	-

	III. Amounts due from the financial sector 
	6 614 795
	
	
	
	
	
	6 614 795

	1. In current account
	122 286
	
	
	
	
	
	122 286

	2. Term
	6 492 509
	
	
	
	
	
	6 492 509

	IV. Amounts due from the non-financial sector
	10 245 078
	
	
	
	
	
	10 245 078

	1. In current account
	858 722
	
	
	
	
	
	858 722

	2. Term
	9 386 356
	
	
	
	
	
	9 386 356

	V. Receivables from the public sector
	385 300
	
	
	
	
	
	385 300

	1. In current account
	20 848
	
	
	
	
	
	20 848

	2. Term
	364 452
	
	
	
	
	
	364 452

	VI. Reverse repo transactions
	-
	
	
	
	2 316
	43 724
	46 040

	VII. Debt securities
	4 022 147
	
	
	
	21 133
	
	4 043 280

	VIII. Shares or interests in subsidiary undertakings
	152 462
	
	
	
	16 759
	
	169 221

	IX. Shares or interests in interdependent undertakings
	-
	
	
	
	
	
	-

	X. Shares or interests in associated undertakings
	47 443
	
	
	
	6 916
	
	54 359

	XI. Shares or interests in other undertakings
	134 619
	
	
	
	165 763
	(43 724)
	256 658

	XII. Other securities and proprietary interest
	9 545
	
	
	
	363
	
	9 908

	XIII. Intangible assets:
	65 760
	(311)
	(536)
	
	
	
	64 913

	- goodwill
	6 131
	
	
	
	
	
	6 131

	XIV. Tangible fixed assets
	1 017 432
	
	536
	3 691
	(10 792)
	
	1 010 867

	- depreciation
	-
	
	
	
	(7 051)
	
	(7 051)

	- investments
	-
	
	
	
	(3 741)
	
	(3 741)

	XV. Other assets
	265 190
	
	
	
	(9 070)
	
	256 120

	1. Assets taken over – for sale
	719
	
	
	
	
	
	719

	2. Other
	264 471
	
	
	
	(9 070)
	
	255 401

	XVI. Prepayments
	553 392
	311
	
	
	
	
	553 703

	1. Deferred taxation
	121 434
	
	
	
	
	
	121 434

	2. Other prepayments
	431 958
	311
	
	
	
	
	432 269

	Total assets
	24 829 405
	
	
	3 691
	193 388
	
	25 026 484

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Balance Sheet
	As at 

31-12-2001 
	Costs of the company’s organisation settled over time 
	Perpetual usufruct of land
	Leased fixed assets taken to the opening balance
	Valuation
	Reclassification
	Balance as at 

1-01-2002 

	L i a b i l i t i e s
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	I. Deposits of the Central Bank
	-
	
	
	
	
	
	-

	II. Deposits of the financial sector
	2 223 627
	
	
	
	
	
	2 223 627

	1. In current account
	137 561
	
	
	
	
	
	137 561

	2. Term
	2 086 066
	
	
	
	
	
	2 086 066

	III. Deposits of the non-financial sector
	17 554 233
	
	
	
	
	
	17 554 233

	1. Savings deposits, of which:
	2
	
	
	
	
	
	2

	a) current
	-
	
	
	
	
	
	-

	b) term
	2
	
	
	
	
	
	2

	2. Other, of which
	17 554 231
	
	
	
	
	
	17 554 231

	a) current
	4 117 053
	
	
	
	
	
	4 117 053

	b) term
	13 437 178
	
	
	
	
	
	13 437 178

	IV. Deposits of the public sector
	1 159 974
	
	
	
	
	
	1 159 974

	a) current
	594 411
	
	
	
	
	
	594 411

	b) term
	565 563
	
	
	
	
	
	565 563

	V. Repo transactions
	-
	
	
	
	
	
	-

	VI. Liabilities arising from the issue of securities by the Bank
	-
	
	
	
	
	
	-

	1. short-term
	-
	
	
	
	
	
	-

	2. long-term
	-
	
	
	
	
	
	-

	VII. Other financial liabilities
	-
	
	
	
	
	
	-

	VIII. Special funds and other liabilities
	688 709
	
	
	3 634
	
	
	692 343

	IX. Accruals, deferred income and suspended income 
	831 300
	
	
	
	
	
	831 300

	1. Accruals
	295 036
	
	
	
	
	
	295 036

	2. Negative goodwill
	-
	
	
	
	
	
	-

	3. Other deferred income and suspended income
	536 264
	
	
	
	
	
	536 264

	X. Provisions
	202 008
	
	
	
	71 787
	
	273 795

	1. Provision for income tax 
	-
	
	
	
	47 794
	
	47 794

	 - adjustment of the provision
	-
	
	
	
	(9 392)
	
	(9 392)

	2. Other provisions
	202 008
	
	
	
	23 993
	
	226 001

	a) short-term
	-
	
	
	
	
	
	-

	b)  long-term
	202 008
	
	
	
	23 993
	
	226 001

	- in relation to the provision
	-
	
	
	
	23 993
	
	23 993

	XI. Subordinated liabilities
	10 048
	
	
	
	
	
	10 048

	XII. Share capital
	729 603
	
	
	
	
	
	729 603

	XIII. Due contributions to the share capital (negative value) 
	-
	
	
	
	
	
	-

	XIV. Own shares (negative value) 
	-
	
	
	
	
	
	-

	XV. Supplementary capital
	373 371
	
	
	
	
	
	373 371

	XVI. Revaluation reserve
	70 087
	
	
	57
	120 993
	
	191 137

	- revaluation of assets 
	-
	
	
	
	168 562
	
	168 562

	- deferred tax 
	-
	
	
	
	(47 569
	
	(47 569)

	XVII. Other supplementary capital
	835 047
	
	
	
	
	
	835 047

	XVIII. Retained profit/uncovered loss from previous years
	-
	
	
	
	608
	
	608

	- valuation of assets
	-
	
	
	
	35 618
	
	35 618 

	- deferred tax
	-
	
	
	
	(9 617) 
	
	(9 617)

	- depreciation
	-
	
	
	
	(7 051)
	
	(7 051)

	- non-capitalized costs
	-
	
	
	
	(3 741)
	
	(3 741)

	Balance Sheet
	As at 

31-12-2001 
	Costs of the company’s organisation settled over time 
	Perpetual usufruct of land
	Leased fixed assets taken to the opening balance
	Valuation
	Reclassification
	Balance as at 

1-01-2002 

	- provision used for holidays
	-
	
	
	
	(23 993)
	
	(23 993)

	- deferred tax arising from the said adjustments
	-
	
	
	
	9 392
	
	9 392

	XIX. Net profit (loss)
	151 398
	
	
	
	
	
	151 398

	Total liabilities
	24 829 405
	
	
	3 691
	193 388
	
	25 026 484


Comparative data of Bank Zachodni WBK Group (“pro forma”) as at 31 December 2001 (consolidated balance sheet and income statement for 2001 of companies consolidated for the first time in  2002):

	Assets
	Total assets  as at  31.12.2001 after modification
	Total of balance sheet items of companies excluded from consolidation as at 31.12.2001
	Consolidation adjustments and exclusions in total
	Comparative data

As at 31.12.2001 

(8 companies)

	Line-by-line consolidation  
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Cash and operations with the Central Bank
	1 316 242
	13
	- 
	1 316 255

	Debt securities with the right to rediscount at the Central Bank
	-
	-
	- 
	-

	Amounts due from financial sector
	6 461 330
	17 048
	29 113
	6 507 491

	Short-term receivables
	5 615 083
	15 043
	(159 914)
	5 470 212

	 In current account
	125 664
	2 430
	(127 864) 
	230

	Other short-term receivables
	5 489 419
	12 613
	(32 050) 
	5 469 982

	Long-term receivables
	846 247
	2 005
	189 027 
	1 037 279

	Amounts due from non-financial sector
	10 245 127
	489 105
	-
	10 734 232

	 Short-term receivables
	4 553 202
	113 309
	-
	4 666 511

	In current account
	858 795
	-
	- 
	858 795

	Other short-term receivables
	3 694 407
	113 309
	- 
	3 807 716

	Long-term receivables
	5 691 925
	375 796
	- 
	6 067 721

	Amounts due from public sector
	385 300
	10
	-
	385 310

	Short-term receivables
	53 386
	10
	-
	53 396

	In current account
	20 848
	-
	- 
	20 848

	Other short-term receivables
	32 538
	10
	- 
	32 548

	Long-term receivables
	331 914
	-
	- 
	331 914

	Reverse repo transactions
	43 736
	608
	- 
	44 344

	Debt securities
	4 022 209
	5 519
	- 
	4 027 728

	Amounts due from subordinated entities valued acc. to equity method
	159 242
	36
	(159 218)
	60

	Subsidiary
	159 242
	36
	(159 218) 
	60

	interdependent
	-
	-
	- 
	-

	associated
	-
	-
	- 
	-

	Shares or interests in subsidiaries valued under equity method
	84 372
	22 972
	(96 813) 
	10 531

	Shares or interests in interdependent entities valued under equity method
	-
	-
	- 
	-

	Shares or interests in associates valued under equity method
	47 407
	-
	- 
	47 407

	Shares or interests in other entities
	94 127
	-
	(3 209) 
	90 918

	Assets
	Total assets  as at  31.12.2001 after modification
	Total of balance sheet items of companies excluded from consolidation as at 31.12.2001
	Consolidation adjustments and exclusions in total
	Comparative data

As at 31.12.2001 

(8 companies)

	Other securities and other financial assets
	480 309
	2 429
	- 
	482 738

	 Intangible assets, of which:
	62 607
	1 141
	- 
	63 748

	- goodwill
	592
	-
	- 
	592

	Goodwill of subordinated entities
	-
	-
	- 
	-

	Tangible fixed assets
	1 023 096
	1 633
	- 
	1 024 729

	Other assets
	219 845
	20 741
	(16)
	240 570

	Assets taken over - for sale
	719
	-
	- 
	719

	Stock
	-
	-
	- 
	-

	Other
	219 126
	20 741
	(16) 
	239 851

	Prepayments
	397 311
	9 415
	-
	406 726

	Deferred income tax assets
	376 581
	3 334
	- 
	379 915

	Other prepayments
	20 730
	6 081
	- 
	26 811

	Total assets
	25 042 260
	570 670
	(230 143)
	25 382 787

	Deposits of the Central Bank
	-
	-
	-
	-

	 Amounts due to financial sector
	1 998 703
	434 627
	(120 760)
	2 312 570

	Short-term liabilities
	1 905 984
	120 974
	(144 243)
	1 882 715

	In current account
	122 552
	997
	(116 526)
	7 023

	Other short-term liabilities
	1 783 432
	119 977
	(27 717)
	1 875 692

	Long-term liabilities
	92 719
	313 653
	23 483
	429 855

	Amounts due to non-financial sector
	17 684 973
	311
	3 022
	17 688 306

	Short-term liabilities
	14 740 395
	311
	3 022
	14 743 728

	In current account, of which:
	4 253 420
	-
	(2 587)
	4 250 833

	-saving accounts
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Other short-term liabilities, of which:
	10 486 975
	311
	5 609
	10 492 895

	- saving accounts
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Long-term liabilities, of which
	2 944 578
	-
	-
	2 944 578

	- saving accounts
	2
	-
	-
	2

	 Amounts due to public sector
	1 162 055
	346
	-
	1 162 401

	 Short-term liabilities
	1 160 864
	346
	-
	1 161 210

	In current account
	596 492
	346
	-
	596 838

	Other short-term liabilities
	564 372
	-
	-
	564 372

	Long-term liabilities
	1 191
	-
	-
	1 191

	Repo transactions
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Liabilities arising from the issue of debt securities
	-
	-
	-
	-

	 Short-term
	-
	-
	-
	-

	 Long-term
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Other liabilities arising from financial instruments
	232 488
	-
	-
	232 488

	Amounts due to subordinated entities valued acc. to equity method
	38 350
	-
	(12 367)
	25 983

	Subsidiary
	38 165
	-
	(12 182)
	25 983

	interdependent
	-
	-
	-
	-

	associated
	185
	-
	(185)
	-

	Special funds and other liabilities
	697 671
	24 459
	(16)
	727 114

	Accrued and suspended income and expenses
	688 126
	2 259
	-
	690 385

	Accruals
	193 990
	2 050
	-
	196 040

	Negative goodwill
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Deferred and suspended income
	494 136
	209
	-
	494 345

	Negative goodwill of subordinated entities
	-
	-
	9 180
	9 180

	Provisions
	375 414
	2 778
	-
	378 192

	 Provision for deferred income tax
	253 952
	2 700
	-
	256 652

	Assets
	Total assets  as at  31.12.2001 after modification
	Total of balance sheet items of companies excluded from consolidation as at 31.12.2001
	Consolidation adjustments and exclusions in total
	Comparative data

As at 31.12.2001 

(8 companies)

	 Other provisions
	121 462
	78
	-
	121 540

	Short-term
	-
	78
	-
	78

	Long-term
	121 462
	-
	-
	121 462

	 Subordinated liabilities
	10 048
	-
	-
	10 048

	Capital of minority shareholders
	-
	-
	7 673
	7 673

	Share capital
	729 603
	154 211
	(171 211)
	712 603

	 Due contributions to share capital (negative value)
	-
	(4 312)
	4 312
	-

	 Bank's own shares (negative value)
	-
	-
	-
	-

	 Supplementary capital
	380 466
	5 983
	(7 036)
	379 413

	 Balance of revaluation reserve
	70 087
	1 825
	-
	71 912

	 Other reserve capital
	820 393
	-
	15 249
	835 642

	FX differences from re-calculation of subordinated entities
	-
	-
	-
	-

	 Positive fx differences
	-
	-
	-
	-

	 Negative fx differences
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Profit (loss) from previous years
	5 374
	(58 249)
	42 641
	(10 234)

	Net profit (loss)
	148 509
	6 432
	(830)
	154 111

	Total liabilities
	25 042 260
	570 670
	(230 143)
	25 382 787


	Profit and loss account
	Result as at   31.12.2001after modification
	Total P&L items of companies excluded from consolidation as at 31.12.2001
	Consolidation adjustments and exclusions in total
	Comparative data

As at 31.12.2001 

(8 companies)

	Interest income
	2 650 326
	52 636
	(11 467)
	2 691 495

	Interest expense
	(2 028 576)
	(33 606)
	11 467
	(2 050 715)

	Net interest income
	621 750
	19 030
	-
	640 780

	Commission income
	481 329
	-
	141
	481 470

	Commission expense
	(79 275)
	(485)
	(141)
	(79 901)

	Net commission income
	402 054
	(485)
	-
	401 569

	Net income on sales of products, goods and materials
	-
	24 199
	-
	24 199

	Costs of sold products, goods and materials
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Sales costs
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Profit on sales
	-
	24 199
	-
	24 199

	Income from shares, interests, other securities and financial instruments with variable yield
	22 661
	288
	(540)
	22 409

	From subsidiaries
	6 723
	-
	(540)
	6 183

	From interdependent entities
	-
	-
	-
	-

	From associates
	15 938
	-
	-
	15 938

	From other units
	-
	288
	-
	288

	Profit on financial operations
	399 100
	1 453
	-
	400 553

	FX profit
	137 076
	1 298
	-
	138 374

	Profit on banking operations
	1 582 641
	45 783
	(540)
	1 627 884

	Other operating income
	60 350
	33 113
	(13 197)
	80 266

	Other operating costs
	(84 008)
	(21 294)
	11 974
	(93 328)

	Costs of the bank’s operations and general management
	(1 109 226)
	(35 764)
	1 223
	(1 143 767)

	Depreciation of fixed assets and intangible assets
	(135 082)
	(1 289)
	-
	(136 371)

	Allocations to provisions and revaluation
	(858 954)
	(12 381)
	-
	(871 335)

	Profit and loss account
	Result as at   31.12.2001after modification
	Total P&L items of companies excluded from consolidation as at 31.12.2001
	Consolidation adjustments and exclusions in total
	Comparative data

As at 31.12.2001 

(8 companies)

	Allocations to specific provisions and  general banking risk reserve
	(858 793)
	(12 239)
	(161)
	(871 193)

	Revaluation of financial assets


	(161)
	(142)
	161
	(142)

	Release of provisions and revaluation
	668 745
	1 053
	-
	669 798

	Release of specific provisions and  general banking risk reserve 
	622 970
	1 053
	35
	624 058

	Revaluation of financial assets
	45 775
	-
	(35)
	45 740

	Balance of provisions and revaluation
	(190 209)
	(11 328)
	-
	(201 537)

	Operating profit
	124 466
	9 221
	(540)
	133 147

	Profit on extraordinary operations
	(210)
	(12)
	-
	(222)

	Extraordinary gains
	286
	2
	-
	288

	Extraordinary losses
	(496)
	(14)
	-
	(510)

	Goodwill charge of subordinated entities
	(1 959)
	-
	-
	(1 959)

	Charges of negative goodwill of subordinated entities
	-
	-
	2 448
	2 448

	Gross profit (loss)
	122 297
	9 209
	1 908
	133 414

	Income tax
	26 212
	(1 777)
	-
	24 435

	Current
	(128 796)
	(3 221)
	592
	(131 425)

	Deferred
	155 008
	1 444
	(592)
	155 860

	Other mandatory reduction of the profit  (increase in the loss)
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Share in net profits (losses) of subordinated entities valued under equity method
	-
	-
	-
	-

	(Profit) loss of minority shareholders
	-
	-
	(2 738)
	(2 738)

	Net profit (loss)
	148 509
	7 432
	(830)
	155 111


33. Changes in the applied accounting principles (policies) and the mode of producing consolidated financial statements, introduced since the previous accounting year (accounting years), their reasons, titles and the impact of their financial implications on the business and financial standing, liquidity, the financial result and profitability.

The financial implications arising from, e.g. the change in the mode of producing the financial statements were described in the detail in point 32 of the Additional Notes to the financial statements.

34. Correction of fundamental errors, their reasons, titles and the impact of the resulting financial implications on the business and financial standing, liquidity, the financial result and profitability. 

The financial statements of Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. Group for 2002 do not include corrections of fundamental errors.

35. If there is uncertainty as to the possibility to continue in business (ongoing concern), the additional notes should include the description of the uncertainty as well as a statement that it exists paralleled by the indication that, as a result, the financial statements might include certain adjustments. The information should also include the description of the actions taken or envisaged by the issuer’s unit aimed at eliminating it. 

There is nothing that would indicate the impossibility of Bank Zachodni WBK Group to continue in business.

36. If the financial statements are produced for the period of the merger, the additional note should indicate that these are financial statements produced following the merger as well as the date of the merger and the applied method of accounting for the business combination (acquisition, uniting of interests)

In 2002, Bank Zachodni WBK Group did not participate in any merger.

37. If the balance sheet date of the financial statements of the subordinated company which is consolidated in the consolidated financial statements is earlier than the consolidated financial statements  but no longer than three months, all the important changes in assets, liabilities, profits and losses of the subordinated entity  which took place in-between  should be provided. 

Such a situation did not take place in entities composing Bank Zachodni WBK Group.

38. Information about corrections and the original amounts of particular items of the financial statements should be provided if respective data of the subordinated company’s financial statements were adjusted to the rules and methods adopted by the dominant entity and in case such adjustments were waived the rationale  for such decision should be given.  

Consolidated financial statements of Bank Zachodni WBK Group for 2002 do not include corrections of individual items of the financial accounts for which valuation principles and methods differed from the ones adopted by the dominant entity, except for situations described in point 12 of the Introduction to the consolidated financial statements.

39. If the issuer does not produce consolidated financial statements, the additional note to the financial statements should present the legal basis for the waiver of the obligation to produce the consolidated financial statements along with the data justifying the departure from consolidation, valuation based on equity method, name and registered office of the unit producing the consolidated financial statements at the higher level of the group and the place where it is published, key economic and financial ratios defining the operations of the connected units in a given accounting year and in the past accounting year, such as: income from sales and financial income, net financial result, equity broken down into groups, value of fixed assets, average annual employment and other information if required by force of separate regulations.

All companies composing Bank Zachodni WBK Group were consolidated on line-by-line basis or under equity  method  which has been described in detail in point 12 of the Introduction to the consolidated financial statements.

40. Moreover, additional information other than specified above and required by force of the applicable accounting regulations, or any other information that might substantially affect the assessment of the business and financial standing as well as the financial result and their changes – should be disclosed in the relevant part of the financial statements. 

Major cases against Bank Zachodni WBK S.A.

BGŻ S.A. contra WBK S.A.

By force of a ruling dated 5 June 1998, the Provincial Court in Warsaw dismissed the entire claim lodged by the Head Office of Bank Gospodarki Żywnościowej in Warsaw to reimburse the amount which was received by WBK S.A. in the course of legal execution proceedings based on a counter-guarantee granted by BGŻ SA for the benefit of WBK, for the debts of Spółdzielnia Przetwórstwa Owocowo – Warzywnego “Frutex” in Ełk along with the statutory interest.

By force of its ruling of 21 September 1999, the Court of Appeal in Warsaw accepted the appeal of Bank Gospodarki Żywnościowej S.A. in Warsaw against the ruling of the Lower Court favourable for WBK and adjudicated the payment by WBK to BGŻ of PLN 9,094k together with the statutory interest due for the periods indicated in the ruling.

The Supreme Court in Warsaw, by force of its ruling dated 17 May 2002, accepted the appeal lodged by BZ WBK S.A. and annulled the ruling of the Appeal Court in Warsaw, submitting the case for re-hearing. 

By force of its ruling dated 05.09.2002, the Court of Appeal in Warsaw confirmed its earlier decision dated 21 September 1999.

The Bank obtained a legal opinion from an external law firm which indicated that there was no rationale behind lodging a final appeal to the Supreme Court. On 27 December 2002, the Bank fully executed the ruling. The ultimate value of the claim lodged by BGŻ S.A. along with the court fees was at PLN 12,195k.

“Interinvest” sp. z o.o. contra WBK S.A. Centrala (WBK Head Office)

Interinwest SA (claimant re. 2) and a private individual specified in the claim (claimant re.1) filed a suit for payment against Wielkopolski Bank Kredytowy S.A. on 30 December 1999. The claim seeks:

1. adjudicating for the benefit of the Claimant re.1, the payment along with the statutory interest as of the day of the claim’s service upon the defendant paralleled by transferring, by the claimant onto the defendant, part of the receivables from DZM “Dozamet” under bankruptcy arising from a short-term loan together with interest raised by the company in 1991 – PLN 20k,

2. to adjudicate for the benefit of the Claimant “Interinwest” S.A., with a registered office in Poznań, the amount of PLN 7,197k along with statutory interest as of the date of the claim’s service upon the defendant paralleled by transferring, by the claimant onto the defendant, part of the receivables from DZM “Dozamet” under bankruptcy arising from a short-term loan together with interest raised by the company in 1991 –  PLN 11,855k,

3. to adjudicate for the benefit of the Claimants the reimbursement of the court fees by the defendant.

In their statement of reasons, the Claimants raised, among others, the fact that the Bank, in the agreement concluded on 19 March 1999, stated that the sold debt was indisputable and mature (§1 of the agreement).  Furthermore, the Defendant stated  (§ 3 of the agreement) that as a security for the sold debt, the Defendant was, among others, entitled to:

· repossession of machinery and equipment with the total value of PLN 515k,

· repossession of materials and finished products with the total value of PLN 5,752k.

As it turned out later, the repossession agreements concluded by WBK SA were invalid due to the absence of consent from the Minister of the State Treasury. According to the information obtained from the Risk Management Department, in the course of negotiations with the Claimant, the Bank did not hide the fact that “Dozamet” SA did not have consent of the Minister of the State Treasury. According to the Lower Court, this fact, however, was not reflected in the documents held. 

On 28 March 2001, the Court passed an unfavorable ruling for the Bank by adjudicating the amount of PLN 7,725k along with the statutory interest and the reimbursement of a part of the court costs for the benefit of Interinvest S.A. (claimant re.2). The Claimant re.2 was also obliged to transfer for the benefit of the defendant the receivables stipulated in the agreement dated 19 March 1999. The remaining part of the claim was dismissed. The Bank lodged an appeal.

 The Appeal Court in Poznań, by force of a ruling dated 29 May 2002, dismissed a substantial part of the Bank’s appeal against the unfavorable ruling of the Lower Court and adjudicated PLN 6,870k together with the statutory interest for the periods specified in the ruling for the benefit of the Claimant. The Court dismissed the Bank’s claim to suspend the enforceability of the ruling.  

On 17 July 2002, Bank Zachodni WBK SA made a transfer of PLN 10,602.4k in line with the ruling of the Appeal Court in Poznań, for the benefit of Interinvest. The provision for the disputable amount was released. Having received the justification of the ruling from the Court of Appeal, the Bank decided not to lodge a final appeal with the Supreme Court.

Case brought by the Receiver in Bankruptcy of ZZO S.A.

The Supreme Court in Warsaw, by force of a ruling dated 20.03.2002, accepted the appeal of Bank Zachodni WBK S.A. against the ruling of the Higher Court, unfavorable for the Bank, in the case brought by the Receiver in Bankruptcy of ZZO S.A. in Złotoryja re. the payment (disputable amount: PLN 5,000k) and passed the case to the Court of Appeal for re-hearing. The Court of Appeal in Wrocław, having reheard the case on 17.10.2002. annulled the ruling of the Lower Court dated 10.02.1999. and adjudicated the reimbursement of all court fees for the benefit of Bank Zachodni WBK S.A.. The claimant lodged an appeal against the ruling with the Supreme Court. The Bank holds a full provision for the disputable amount.  

FX structure of assets and liabilities  
in PLN k 

	
	Component s         of fx position           B/S long (+)
	Components           of fx position

B/S short  (-)
	Components         of fx position                    index  long  (+)
	Component s         of fx position                   index short (-)

	HUF
	31
	-
	-
	-

	CZK
	48
	-
	-
	-

	EEK
	1
	-
	-
	-

	AUD
	108
	-
	-
	-

	JPY
	6 394
	-
	-
	-

	USD
	-
	299 114
	112 742
	-

	CAD
	-
	90
	-
	-

	GBP
	-
	73 215
	865
	-

	DKK
	620
	-
	-
	-

	NOK
	-
	1
	-
	-

	CHF
	1 271 766
	-
	40 229
	-

	SEK
	2 066
	-
	-
	-

	EUR
	764 180
	-
	195 531
	-

	TOTAL 
	2 045 214
	372 420
	349 367
	-


	
	Components          of fx position

off B/S long (+)
	Component s         of fx position                off B/S short (-)

	HUF
	-
	57

	CZK
	-
	105

	JPY
	-
	6 695

	USD
	164 864
	-

	GBP
	72 138
	-

	DKK
	-
	1 052

	NOK
	-
	44

	CHF
	-
	1 314 691

	SEK
	-
	2 054

	EUR
	-
	941 602

	TOTAL 
	237 002
	2 266 300
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